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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

{632) 888 8388
fwd.com.ph

The Management of FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION is responsible for all information
and representations contained in the Annual Income Tax Return for the year ended
December 31, 2017. Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations
contained in the financial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return or Annual
Information Return covering the same reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible
for all information and representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting
period, including, but not limited, to the value added tax and/or percentage tax returns, withholding
tax returns, documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax returns,

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2017 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with
the books and records of FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION, complete and correct in all
material respects. Management likewise affirms that:

(a) the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuances of the Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitied reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax
return pursuant to the tax accounting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained in the Company’s books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances;

{(¢) FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION has filed all applicable tax returns, reports,
and statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all
taxes and-o impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the
reporifng peplod, except those contested in good faith.

Chairman of the Board //’} s
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CHicf Executive Qfficer 4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
FWD Life Insurance Corporation

19/F, W Fifth Avenue Building,

5th Avenue corner 32nd Street,

Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of FWD Life Insurance Corporation (the Company), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management defermines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
inchudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¢ Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the ﬁnancxal statermnents represent the underlying transactions and events in a
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overal! presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 30 to
the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the
management of FWD Life Insurance Corporation. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
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FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

-
g{g %

December 31 /

January 1
V2016 2016
(Asrestated -  (As restated -
Notes 2017 Note 2) Note 2)
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,26 B600,659,865  B551,171,625  P499,876,897
Short-term Investments 5,26 37,000,000 - 56,800,000
Financial Assets
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets 6,26  1,294,943,086  1,007,475,085 539,975,469
Financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss (FVPL) 6,7,26 248,401,101 214,571,439 219,038,160
Assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities 6,7 6,643,597,454  3,405,976,122  1,575,982,581
I.oans and receivables - net 6,26 84,335,995 41,022,760 28,265,699
Accrued Income 8,26 8,455,854 9,957,583 2,910,273
Property and Equipment - net 9 168,245,608 176,249,050 118,883,038
Prepaid Assets 10,27 347,928,942 394,874,473 349,835,068
Intangible Assets - net 11 296,843,631 310,401,848 285,050,320
Other Assets 12 47,564,761 28,791,265 8,492,430
TOTAL ASSETS B9,778,676,297 P6,140,491 250 P3,685,109,935
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities - net 13 P41,678,326 P50,843,049 RO14,588
Unit-linked liabilities 6,7 6,643,597,454  3,405,976,122  1,575,982,581
Insurance payables 14,26 47,045,625 37,317,452 10,669,438
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,26 577,488,105 479,191,565 244,724,557
Taxes payable 16 30,086,824 34,717,273 27,768,113
Pension liability 22 9,110,134 13,217,480 8,999,161
Payable to related parties 24,26 261,336,052 171,866,945 83,065,476
7,610,342,520  4,193,129,886  1,952,123,914
Equity
Capital stock 17 2,300,000,000  1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 17 327,599,568 327,599,568 327,599,508
Contributed surplus 17 1,335,000,000  1,335,000,000  1,585,000,000
Contingency surplus 17 1,430,000,000 1,550,000,000 -
Remeasurement gain on pension obligation 22 13,383,652 5,449,391 -
Remeasurement gain (loss) on life insurance reserves 13 (4,412,381) 113,559 67,211

Deficit (3,211,562,177) (2,254,559,394) (1,177,234,629)
Unrealized fair value loss on AFS financial assets 6 (21,674,885) (16,241,760) (2,446,129)
2,168,333,777 1,947,361,364  1,732,986,021

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

B9,778,676,297 P6,140,491,250 $3,685,109,935

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2016
(As restated -
Notes 2017 Note 2)
REVENUE
Gross insurance premiums 18 £4,571,265,940 P3,024,648,482
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance premiums 18 (21,399,482) (8,918,1682)
Insurance premiums - net 18 4,549,866,458 3,015,730,290
Fair value gain on fair value through profit or loss and assets
held to cover unit-linked labilities 7 855,634,716 -
Investment income 19 41,937,545 31,722,475
Management fee income 19 75,320,555 40,886,649
Other income 14,595,062 2,258,671
Other revenues 987,487,878 74,867,795
Total revenue 5,537,354,336 3,090,598,085
BENEFITS, CLAIMS, EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Gross benefits and claims 469,117,798 59,684,864
Reinsurers’ share in benefits and claims - (400,000)
Net benefits and claims 20 469,117,798 59,284,864
Gross change in insurance contract liabilities (33,584,076) 50,489,753
Reinsurers’ share of gross increase in insurance contract
liabilities (2,736,299) {514,943}
Decrease in unit-linked liabilities 3,237,621,332 1,829,635,968
Net insurance expense 3,670,418,755 1,938,895,642
General and administrative expenses 21 1,334,334,155 1,067,163,739
Commission expense and agency-related expenses 21 1,469,561,611 1,015,549,716
Fair value loss on fair value through profit or loss and assets
held to cover unit-linked liabilities 7 - 137,525,097
Loss on sale of AFS financial assets 6 - 1,737,805
Foreign currency exchange losses 23 11,146,697 118,777
Total operating expenses 2,815,042,463 2,222,095,134
Total expenses 6,485,461,218 4,160,990,776
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 948,106,882 1,070,392,691
Provision for income fax 25 8,895,901 6,932,074
NET LOSS 957,002,783 1,077,324,765
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Unrealized fair value loss on AFS financial assets 6 5,433,125 13,795,631
Remeasurement (gain) loss on life insurance reserves 13 4,525,940 (46,348)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Remeasurement (gain) loss on pension obligation 22 (7,934,261) (5,449,391)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS P959,027,587  P1,085,624,657

See accompanying Notes to Financial Siatgm%% ET{;\)K RAYERS SERVI (? EUt
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FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORFORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2016
(As restated -
Notes 2017 Note 2}
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (B948,106,882) (B1,070,392,691)
Adjustmentis for;
Net change in insurance contract liabilities 13 (36,320,375) 49,974,810
Increase in unit-linked liabilities 7 3,237,621,332 1,829,993 541
Depreciation of property and equipment 9 83,670,840 62,221,069
Amortization of prepaid assets 10 437,701,131 186,091,410
Amortization of intangible assets 11 53,210,570 38,304,156
Provision for bad debts 6,21 2,382,724 -
Provision for impairment losses of intangible assets 11,21 6,714,664 e
L.oss on sale of AFS financial asset i} - 1,737,805
Fair value loss on fair value through profit or loss
asset and assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities 7 (855,634,716) 137,525,097
Interest income 19 (41,937.545) (31,722,475)
Operating income before working capital changes 1,939,301,743 1,203,732,722
Decrease (increase) in:
Loans and receivables 6 (45,695,959) {10,246,429)
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 6,7,26 (33,829,662) 4,466,721
Assets held to cover unit-linked Habilities 7,26 (2,381,986,616) {1,967,518,638)
Insurance contract liabilities 7,26 22,629,712 -
Prepaid assets 1¢ (390,755,600) (233,641,447}
Other assets 12 (18,773,496) (20,298,835)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15 98,296,540 225,467,647
Insurance payables 14 9,728,173 26,648,013
Pension liability 22 3,826,915 18,666,871
Payable to related parties 24 89,469,107 88,801,469
Taxes payable 16 (4,630,449) 6,949,160
Cash used in operations (712,419,592) (656,972,546)
Income taxes paid (8,895,901) (6,932,074)
Net cash used in operating activities (721,315,493) (663,904,620)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Available-for-sale financial assets 6,26 (460,431,426) (972,251,425)
Property and equipment 9 {76,367,398) (119,587,081}
Intangible assets 11 (46,367,017) (63,655,684)
Short-term investments 5 (37,000,000) -
Proceeds from maturity or disposal of:
Short-term investments - 56,800,000
Available-for-sale financial assets 6,26 165,000,000 486,495,000
Interest received 45,969,574 27,398,538
Net cash used in investing activities (409,196,267) (584,800,652)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additions to;
Contributed surplus 17 - £00,000,600
Contingency surplus SR v 1,180,000,000 500,000,000
vienl REVES 1,300,000,000

Cash generated from financing activities

PRl W AT mE

1,180,000,000
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Years Ended December 31

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR

2016
(As restated -

2017 Note 2)
P49,488,240 P51,294,728
551,171,625 499,876,897

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

P600,659,865 P551,171,625
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FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

FWD Life Insurance Corporation (the “Company™) was incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines
and is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 19, 2013, The
registered principal office of the Company is at 19" floor W Fifth Avenue Bldg., 5" Avenue, Corner
32™ Street, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FWD
Group Financial Services Pte. Litd (the Parent Company), a company domiciled in Singapore engaged
in private investment activities.

The Company was organized to primarily engage in and carry on the business of life insurance and to
undertake and write insurance upon lives of individuals and every insurance appertaining thereto or
connected therewith, including reinsurance; to make contracts for insurance and re-insurance for all
risks, hazards, guarantees and contingencies to which life, accident or health insurance is applicable, to
indemnify against legal liability, to compute endowments and grant, purchase or dispose annuities; to
procure or acquire re-insurance of its risks; to issue policies stipulated to be with or without
participation in profits and to purchase for its own benefit or for its obligations any policy of insurance,
and perform such other powers related to or incidental to the business of life insurance.

On April 2, 2014, the Company was granted a Certificate of Authority by the Insurance Commission
(IC) to operate as a life insurance company. The Company started its commercial operations on
September 15, 2014,

On July 17, 2014, the Company received IC approval to sell Variable unit-linked (VUL) products. On
April 6, 2015, the Company received IC approval to sell traditional products, on which the first policy
was issued on April 23, 2015. The Company currently sells both variable life and traditional life
products.

On September 15, 2014, the Company and Security Bank Corporation (SBC) signed an agreement
which appoints SBC to sell exclusively the life insurance products of the Company. The agreement
was filed on November 11, 2014 with the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and the IC for their
respective approvals. On December 22, 2014, SBC received the approval of BSP through its Resolution
No. 2073. On January 12, 2015, the Company received the approval of the agreement from IC.

The financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on March 15, 2018,

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), which have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Philippine
Peso (®), which is the Company’s presentation and functional currency. All amounts are rounded to
the nearest Peso unless otherwise indicated.
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Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with the previous financial year except for adoption of
the following new and amended standards and interpretations which became effective January 1,
2017. The adoption of these new and amended standards and interpretations have no material impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

e  Amendments to PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard (Part of Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
summarized financial information, apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or
an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified (or
included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

e  Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Fiows, Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses).
On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required to provide comparative
information for preceding periods. Early application of the amendments is permitted.

e Amendments to PAS 12, Income Tuxes, Recognition of Deferved Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary
difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide gnidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application
of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be
recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of
equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Early application of the amendments
is permitted.

o Insurance Commission (IC) Circular No. 2016-66, Valuation Standards for Life Insurance Policy
Reserves

On December 28, 2016, Insurance Commission (IC) released Circular Letter No. 2016-66 on the
Valuation Standards for Life Insurance Policy Reserves which mandated the change in the basis
of valuation of the life insurance policy reserves from Net Premium Valuation (NPV} to Gross
Premium Valuation (GPV). Relative implementation of the new valuation standards for life
insurance policy reserves is construed to be a change in accounting policy. The cumulative prior
year impact of the changes, as well as any change in the assumptions under GPV computed is
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recognized in retained earnings except for the increase or decrease of the reserves brought about
by changes in discount rates which is recognized under remeasurement gain and loss on legal

policy reserves.

On January I, 2017, the Company has adopted GPV in valuing its life insurance policy reserves,

The changes in accounting policies have been applied refrospectively. The effects of adoption on

the financial statements are as follows:

As at December 31, 2016

Statements of Financial Position

As previously

Effect of

reported adoption As restated
Increase (decrease) in:
Insurance contract liabilitics B55,366,890 (B7,713,074) B47,653,816
Rer.neasurement gain on life 3 113,559 113,559
insurance reserves
Deficit 2,262,158,909 (7,599,515)  2,254,559,394

Year ended December 31, 2016

Statements of Comprehensive
Income

Increase (decrease) in:
Gross change in legal policy
reserves
Net income

P 55,096,724
(1,081,931,736)

(24,606,971)
4,606,971

50,489,753
(1,077,324,765)

As at January 1, 2016

Statements of Financial Position

As previously

Effect of

reported adoption As restated
Increase (decrease) in:
Insurance contract liabilities £2,521,902 (£3,059,755) (B537,853)
Remeasu.rement gain on life N 67211 67211
insurance reserves
Deficit 1,180,227,173 (2,992,544) 1,177,234,629

Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company will adopt the following new and amended standards and interpretations enumerated
below when these become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption of these new
accounting standards and amendments have no material impact on the Company’s financial

statements.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2018

¢  Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions

The amendments to PFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations; and the
accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.
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On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendments is permitted,

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with
PFRS 4

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts standard, They
allow entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral approach to deal with the
transitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue insurance contracts the
option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility that
could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard is issued. On the
other hand, the deferral approach gives entitics whose activities are predominantly connected
with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 until the earlier of
application of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard on January 1, 2021.

The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it has not
previously applied PFRS 9.

The Company is assessing which approach it will use and the potential impact of the chosen
approach in its financial statements,

PERS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers, Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entify expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRS8s. Either a full or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,

The Company is assessing the potential effect of the standard on its financial statements.
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial
Instrumenis: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting, PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with
early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but providing comparative
information is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied
prospectively, with some limited exceptions.

The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the

Company’s financial assets and impairment methodology for financial assets, but will have no
impact on the classification and measurement of the Company’s financial liabilities. The adoption
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will also have an effect on the Company’s application of hedge accounting and on the amount of
its credit losses.

The Company is assessing the potential effect of the standard on its financial statements.

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify
that if an entity that is not itself an investment entity has an interest in an associate or joint
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method, elect to
retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to
the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made
separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later of the date on which
(a) the investment entity associate or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the associate or joint
venture becomes an investment entity; and (c) the investment entity associate or joint venture first
becomes a parent. The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier application
permitted,

Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. Retrospective application is
only permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date
on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. The interpretation may be applied on a fully retrospective basis. Entities may apply
the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially
recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in
the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.
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Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2019

PERS 16, Leases

Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating or finance
leases in accordance with PAS 17, Leases. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model.
Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on their
balance sheets, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest on the
lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or less or for which the
underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.

The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose more
information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual value,

Entities may early adopt PFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted PFRS 15. When adopting
PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach, with options to use certain transition reliefs.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting PFRS 16.

Amendments to PAS 28, Lorg-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments allow companies to measure particular pre-payable financial assets with so-
called negative compensation at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income if a specified condition is met, instead of at fair value through profit or loss. It also
clarifies that companies’ account for long-term interests in an associate or joint venture, to which
the equity method is not applied, using PFRS 9.

Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

These amendments enable entities to measure at amortized cost some pre-payable financial assets
with so-called negative compensation. The Amendment is intended to apply where the pre-
payment amount approximates to unpaid amounts of principal and interest plus or minus an
amount that reflects the change in a benchmark interest rate. This implies that prepayments at
current fair value or at an amount that includes the fair value of the cost to terminate an associated
hedging instrument, will normally satisfy the solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (SPPI} criterion only if other elements of the change in fair value,
such as the effects of credit risk or liquidity, are small. Most likely, the costs to terminate a ‘plain
vanilla’ interest rate swap that is collateralized, so as to minimize the credit risks for the parties to
the swap, will meet this requirement. The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with
earlier application permitted.

Philippine Interpretation YWRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation clarifies application of recognition and measurement requirements in PAS 12
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses
the following: (a) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (b) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities,
(c) how an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates; and (d) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
Interpretation may be applied retrospectively using PAS 8, only if the application is possible
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without the use of hindsight, or it may be applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of the
initial application recognised as an adjustment to equity on the date of initial application.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting IFRIC-23.
Deferred effectivity

e Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not constitute a business, however, is
recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council postponed the original effective
date of January [, 2016 of the said amendments until the International Accounting Standards
Board has completed its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may
result in the simplification of accounting for such fransactions and of other aspects of accounting
for associates and joint ventures.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting the amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS
28,

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are defined as those contracts under which the Company (the insurer) accepts
significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the
policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the
policyholder. As a general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also
transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk and insignificant
insurance risk. Financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified
interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or
rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable
that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the
remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all
rights and obligations are extinguished or expired. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified
as insurance contracts after inception if the insurance risk becomes significant.

Insurance contracts are classified with or without a Discretionary Participation Feature (DPF). DPF is
a contractual right to receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that are:

e likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;
¢ whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the issuer; and
¢ that are contractuaily based on the :
- performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract,
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- realised and or unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by
the issuer, or :
- the profit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues the contract.

For financial options and guarantees which are not closely related to the host insurance contract,
bifurcation is required to measure these embedded financial derivatives separately at FVPL.
Bifurcation is not required if the embedded derivative is itself an insurance contract or when the host
insurance contract itself is measured as financial assets or liabilities at FVPL. As such, the Company
does not separately measure options to surrender insurance contracts for a fixed amount (or an
amount based on a fixed amount and an interest rate). Likewise, the embedded derivative in unit-
linked insurance contracts linking the payments on the contract to units of an infernal investment fund
meets the definition of an insurance contract and is not therefore accounted for separately from the
host insurance contract,

Based on the Company guidelines, all products in its portfolio meet the definition of insurance
confracts, including unit-linked products which have certain features that make use of funds
specifically segregated for the benefit of unit-linked policyholders.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months
or less from date of placement and that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and in banks, including time deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Short-term Investments
These are placements in time deposits and other money market instruments with original maturities of
more than three months but less than one year and which are not restricted as fo use.

Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statement of financial position
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company follows the
trade accounting where an asset to be received and liability to be paid are recognized on the trade date
and derecognition of an asset that is sold and the recognition of a receivable from the buyer is
recognized on the trade date,

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39 are classified into the following categories: financial
assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS financial assets and loans and receivables.
The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. Financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL are designated at the date of initial recognition
only if the criteria under PAS 39 are satisfied. When financial assets are recognized initially, they are
measured at fair value including transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
FVPL.

The Company’s financial assets are of the nature of loans and receivables, AFS financial
assets,financial assets at FVPL and Assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of PAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at FVPL and other
financial liabilities. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if
the criteria of PAS 39 are satisfied. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in
the case of other financial liabilities, include directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities are of the nature of financial liabilities at FVPL and other
financial liabilities.

‘Day 1’ profit or loss

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit or loss) in profit or loss unless it
qualifies for recognifion as some other type of asset. In cases where fair value is determined using
data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only
recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing
the ‘Day 1 profit or loss amount.

Subsequent Measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVPL and assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVPL are
designated only if the criteria under PAS 39 are satisfied.

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognized in the profit or loss.

The Company evaluates its financial assets at FVPL (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Company is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management's intent to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Company may elect to reclassify them. The
reclassification from financial assets at FVPL to loans and receivables, AFS financial assets or HTM
investments depends on the nature of the assets.

This evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at FVPL using the fair value option at
designation, as these instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition,

The Company’s financial assets at FVPL pertains to the Company’s seed capital on its unit-linked
investment funds. The unit-linked investment funds set by the Company underlying the unit-linked
insurance contracts are designated as at FVPL. This is consistent with the valuation basis of the
reserve for variable units held by policyholders.

AFS financial assels

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as AFS are those which are neither classified as held for
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trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized
gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive income in the “Unrealized fair value gain or loss
on AFS financial assets” in equity until the investment is de-recognized, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, where
the cumulative loss is reclassified to profit or loss. For AFS financial debt securities, the difference
between their cost and par value is amortized using the effective interest rate method. Interest and
dividends earned while holding the AFS financial assets are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively, in profit or loss as part of investment income.

The Company evaluates whether the ability and infention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Company is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management's intent to do so in the foresecable future
significantly changes, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial assets. Reclasstfication to
loans and receivables is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition of loans and
receivables and the Company has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future
or to maturity. Reclassification to the HTM category is permitted only when the Company has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has
been recognized in other comprehensive income is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new amortized cost
and the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

The Company’s AFS financial assets pertain to to government and corporate debt securities.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization and the loss arising from impairment are included in “Investment income” in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL includes financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are so designated only if the criteria of PAS 39 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognized in profit or loss,

The net fair value gain or loss recognized in profit or loss does not include any interest charged on
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these financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities at FVPL pertain to its unit-linked liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are stated at amortized cost, with any difference between net proceeds and
redemption value recognized in the profit or loss over the period using the effective interest method.

The Company’s other financial liabilities include insurance payables, accounts payables and accrued
expenses (which also includes amounts payable on redemption) and payable to related parties.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures its debt and equity instruments classified as AFS financial assets and
financial assets at FVPL at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received in the sale of an asset or the price paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both the recurring fair value
measurement and for non-recurring measurement. At each reporting date, the management analyses
the movement in the value of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-
assessed as per the Company’s accounting policy. For this analysis, management verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to
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contracts and other relevant documents with relevant external sources to determine whether the
change is reasonable,

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is de-recognized when:

o the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

o the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through" arrangement; and

e either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and insurance payables are derecogmzed when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or has expired.

When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss,

Offsetting of Financial [nstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred "loss event")
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other

NG




-13-

financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults,

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment,

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a foan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through direct write off or through the use of an
allowance and the loss is recognized in profit or loss, Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realized or has been realized.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other income in profit or loss.

AFS financial assets carried at fair value
For AFS financial assets, the Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized
in the profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The determination of what is
"significant” or "prolonged" requires judgment. The Company generally considers the number of
months the cost of an AFS investment is below its fair value and also the ratio of fair value over cost
in determining an impairment provision. In addition, the Company evaluates other factors, such as
the share price volatility. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss, measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognized in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as AFS are not
reversed through profit or loss, Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognized directly
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in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of investment income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss if the increase in fair value of the instruments can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the profit or
loss.

Insurance Receivables

Insurance receivables are recognized when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, insurance receivables are
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. The carrying value of insurance
receivables are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment loss recorded in the profit or loss. Insurance
receivables are derecognized when the derecognition criteria for financial assets have been met.

Prepayments
Prepayments, including prepaid developmental fees and prepaid access fee, represent expenses not

yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are initially recorded as assets and measured at the
amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are charged to profit or Joss as these are consumed in
operations or expire with the passage of time depending on the terms of the related agreements, if
covered by a contract.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses. The cost of an asset consists of its purchase price, restoration
cost and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already been
recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow
to the Company. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expenses in the period in which
those are incurred.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using straight-line method over the estimated useful live
(EUL) of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the term of the lease or the EUL of
five (5) years of the improvement, whichever is shorter. The EUL of the different categories of
property and equipment are as follows:

Years
Motor vehicles 5
Electronic data processing equipment 3
Office equipment 3
Furniture and fixtures 3
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The useful life and depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
method and period of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from these assets.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no further future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
and is recognized in the profit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment in value, if any.
Intangible assets, consisting mainly of access rights, and software (not an integral part of its related
hardware), are capitalized at cost. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives ranging from three (3) to fifteen (15) years. Periods and method of amortization
for intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed annually or earlier when an indicator of
impairment exists,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated formally by the Company. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value, less costs to
dispose, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss on
an asset is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimate used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises,

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities represent the accumulated total liability for policies in force as of
the reporting date. Such reserves are established at amounts adequate to meet the estimated future
obligations of all life insurance policies in force. These are recognized when the contracts are entered
into and the premiums are recognized. The provision for life insurance contracts, other than
investment linked contracts, is calculated on the basis of a prudent prospective actuarial valuation
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method where the assumptions used depend on the circumstances prevailing at the inception of the
contract, Assumptions and actuarial valuation methods are also subject to provisions of the Insurance
Code (the Code) and guidelines set by IC, subject to the minimum liability adequacy test.

For investment linked contracts, contract lHabilities are directly linked to the underlying investment
assets, which are portfolios maintained to meet specific investment objectives of policyholders who
generally bear the credit and market risks on those investments. The liabilities are carried at fair value
determined with reference to the accumulation value (current unit value). The costs of asset
management fee inclusive of applicable taxes assessed against customers’ account balances are
presented in the profit or loss as part of “Management fee income”.

Life insurance contract with fixed and guaranteed terms

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded under
"Insurance contract liabilities” in the statement of financial position when the premiums are
recognized. The liability is determined as the expected discounted value of the benefit payments and
expenses less the expected discounted value of the gross premiums based on the best estimate
assumptions with provision for adverse deviations. The lability is based on mortality, morbidity,
lapse and expense assumptions with due regard to the company’s recent experience

studies. However, liabilities for contractual benefits are computed to comply with statutory
requirements, which require discount rates to be compliant with the approved rate issued by IC.
Reserves are computed on a seriatim basis and depend on the issue age and policy duration.

Liability adequacy test

Liability adequacy tests are performed semi-annually to ensure the adequacy of the insurance contract
liabilities. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows, claims
handling and policy administration expenses are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged against
the statement of income initially by establishing a provision for losses arising from the liability
adequacy tests.

Unit-linked insurance contracts

The Company issues unit-linked insurance contracts. In addition to providing life insurance coverage,
a unit-linked contract links payments to units of internal investment funds (unit-linked funds) set up
by the Company with the consideration received from the policyholders. As allowed by PFRS 4, the
Company chose not to unbundle the investment portion of its unit-linked products.

Premiums received from the issuance of unit-linked insurance contracts are recognized as premium
revenue. These are separated to fund assets from which the Company withdraws administrative and
cost of insurance charges in accordance with the policy provisions of the unit-linked insurance
contracts. After deduction of these charges together with applicable surrender fees, the remaining
amounts in the fund assets are equal to the surrender value of the unit-linked policies, and could be
withdrawn anytime. The assets and liabilities of the unit-linked funds have been segregated and
reflected in “Assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities™ and “Unit-linked liabilities” in the statement
of financial position. Income or loss arising from the unit-linked funds are classified under
“Investment income” in the profit or loss.

Investments under assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities are valued at market price. Changes in
the assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities due to investment earnings or market value fluctuations
result to the same corresponding change in the unit-linked liabilities. Such changes in fund value are
presented as part of “Investment income™ in the Company’s profit or loss. As of end of the reporting
period, unit-linked liabilitics are computed on the basis of the number of units allocated to the
policyholders multiplied by the unit price of the underlying funds.
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The account value of each unit-linked policyholder in the fund is monitored through the designation
of outstanding units for each policy. Hence, the account value of each unit-linked insurance contract
in the fund is equal to the total number of outstanding units multiplied by the net asset value per unit
(NAVPU). The NAVPU is the market value of the fund divided by the total number of outstanding
units.

Equity

Capital stock
Capital stock is recognized as issued when the stock is paid for or subscribed under a binding
subscription agreement and is measured at par value,

Additional paid-in capital
When the shares are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is
credited to “Additional paid-in capital” account,

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the contribution of the stockholders of the Company, in addition to the
paid-up capital stock, in order to comply with the pre-licensing and capital requirements as provided
under the Code,

Contingeﬁcy surplus
Contingency surplus represents contributions of the stockholders to cover any unexpected deficiency
in the Margin of Solvency (MOS) as required under the Code.

Deficit
Deficit represent accumulated net losses of the Company.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has
concluded that it is acting as principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Premium income

Gross recurring premiums from life insurance contracts are recognized as revenue when payable by
the policyholder. For single premium business, revenue is recognized on the date from which the
policy becomes effective. For regular premium contracts, receivables are recorded at the date when
payments are due,

Investment income

Investment income which pertains to interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues,
taking into account the effective yield of the asset. Interest income includes the amortization of any
discount or premium or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an interest-bearing
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated using the effective interest rate.

Mamagement fee income

Unit-linked funds are charged for fund management and administration. These fees are recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services are rendered.
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Other income
Other income is recognized in the profit or loss as it accrues.

Benefits and Expenses
Expenses, in general, are recognized in the profit or loss in the period these are incurred.

Benefits and claims

Life insurance benefit claims reflect the cost of all claims arising during the year, including claims
handling costs. Death claims and surrenders are recorded on the basis of notifications received.
Benefits recorded are then accrued as liabilities.

For unpaid benefits, a provision is made for the estimated cost of alf claims but not settled at the
reporting date, net of reinsurance recoveries, using the information available at the time. Provision is
also made for the cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) until after the reporting date based
on the Company’s experience and historical data. These actual claims are those reported immediately
following the reporting date, whether paid or unpaid, but wherein the date of loss occurred on or
before the reporting date. Claims handling costs include internal and external costs incurred in
connection with the negotiation and settlement of claims. Internal costs include all direct expenses of
the claims department and any part of the general administrative costs directly attributable to the
claims function.

General and administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses are costs attributable to administrative and other business
activities of the Company. These are recognized as expense in the period these are incurred.

Commission and agency related expenses

Commission and agency related expenses are charged against operations when the insurance contracts
are entered into and related premiums are recognized. Commissions are paid to agents and financial
executives for selling individual and group policies. Rates applied on collected premiums vary
depending on the type of product and payment terms of the contract.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

{a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) arenewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

(c) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is dependent on a specified assef;

(d) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a)}, (c) or (d) above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Company as lessee

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Foreign Currency-denominated Exchange Transactions and Translations

Transactions in currencies other than Philippine Peso are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at the date the fair value was determined. Gains
and losses arising on retranslation are included in profit or loss for the year.

Nonmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction and are not subsequently restated.

Foreign exchange gains or losses are considered as taxable income or deductible expense,
respectively, only upon realization.

Income Tax

Current tax :

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with certain exceptions.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and unused net operating
loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and carry forward of NOLCO can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at cach
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income are
likewise recognized in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted as of end of the reporting period. Movements in the deferred tax
assets and liabilities arising from changes in the rates are charged or credited to profit or loss for the
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
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provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company
expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract held, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is probable, The
Company recognizes a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from
a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the confract, Provision
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a provision is the present value
at the end of the reporting period of the expected future expenditures required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the profit or loss.

Contingencies
Contingencies are disclosed if material and if there is a possible future obligation as a result of a past

event, or if there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, but either a payment is not probable
or the amount cannot be reliably estimated.

Related Party Transactions
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Company
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Employee Benefits

Long-term employee incentives

Certain employees of the Company are eligible for long-term incentives based on the duration of their
service to the Company as defined in their employment contracts. The Company is liable to make
such payments in the event that the employee meets the circumstances specified in those employment
contracts,

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include items such as salaries and wages, social security contributions
and nonmonetary benefits, if expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees rendered the related services. Short-term employee benefits
are recognized as expense as incurred. When an employee has rendered service to the Company
during the reporting period, the Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short-term
employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense),
after deducting any amount already paid.

Pension obligation

The Company operates a funded, non-contributory defined benefit pension plan, which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit (PUC) valuation method.

Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in
the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
QClI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods. o

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or

curtailment or the date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs or termination
benefits.
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset,

The net defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(using a discount rate) less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled
directly. Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund. Plan assets are not
available to creditors of the Company nor can they be paid directly to the Company. Fair value is
based on market price information and, in the case of quoted securities, it is the published bid price.
The value of any net defined benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Events after the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the end of the reporting date (adjusting event) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material fo the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Judgments, Fstimates and Assumptions

The Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements of the Company.

Product classification

The Company has determined that the traditional and unit-linked insurance policies (that link the
payments on the contract to units of insurance investment fund) have significant insurance risk and,
therefore meet the definition of an insurance contract and should be accounted for as such.

Operating lease- the Company as lessee

The Company has entered into lease agreements related to various properties for its head office
premises and branch offices. Based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the lease
agreements, there will be no transfer of ownership of assets to the Company at the end of the lease
term. The lessors retain all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so the
Company accounts for the agreements as operating leases (Refer to Note 27).

Recognition of income taxes

Significant management judgment on the future tax treatment of certain transactions is required in
determining income tax provisions. The Company carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions
and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account developments in tax laws, Tax laws evolve over time, and in some
cases taxation positions are uncertain because the tax laws are subject to varied interpretation. When
this is the case, management secks to adopt a supportable and prudent tax treatment after consultation
with professional tax advisers. However, as judicial and non-judicial interpretations develop, these
taxation positions may change in the future.
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Impairment of AFS financial assets

The Company treats AFS equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is *significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires judgment, The Company
treats ‘significant’ generally as 20% or more and ‘prolonged’ as greater than twelve (12) months for
quoted equity investments.

In addition, the Company evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted
equities and the future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities. Impairment may be
appropriate also when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, the
industry and sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flows.

The carrying values of AFS assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to #1,294.94 million
and £1,007.48 million, respectively (see Note 6).

Impairment of nonfinancial assets

The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
each reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

The Company recognized impairment loss on its infangible asset in 2017 amounting to £6.7 million
(see Note 11). There was no impairment indicator identified on the Company’s property and
equipment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. The carrying values of property and equipment and
intangible assets are disclosed in Note 9 and Note 11, respectively.

Liability adequacy testing

The Company evaluates the adequacy of its insurance contract liabilities at least semi-annually.
Significant judgment is exercised in determining the level of aggregation at which liability adequacy
testing is performed and in selecting best estimate assumptions. Liability adequacy is assessed on a
portfolio of contracts in accordance with the Company’s manner of acquiring, servicing and
measuring the profitability of its insurance contracts.

The judgments exercised in liability adequacy testing affect amounts recognized in the financial
statements such as commission and other acquisition related expenses, insurance contract benefits and
liabilities.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have significant risks of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value determinations for financial assets and liabilities are based generally on listed market prices
or broker or dealer price quotations. The use of different pricing models and assumptions could produce
materially different estimates of fair value.

In determining the fair values, management evaluates the normal volatility in the share price, the
financial health of the investee, and the industry and sector performance, like changes in operational
and financial cash flows. Any indication of deterioration in the above factors can have a negative impact
on the fair value. The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are shown in Note 26.
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Claims liability arising from insurance contracts

The components of the claims liability are mostly based on the company’s claims inventory report with
the exception of the incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims. Estimates of IBNR are made as to the
expected number of deaths, illnesses and injuries for each of the years in which the Company is exposed
to risk. The Company bases these estimates on standard mortality and morbidity tables as used in the
determination of the statutory reserves. The estimated number of deaths, illnesses and injuries
determines the value of possible future benefits to be paid out, which will be factored into ensuring
sufficient cover by reserves.

Estimates are also made as to future investment income arising from the assets backing life insurance
contracts. These estimates are based on current market returns, as well as expectations about future
economic and financial developments. The carrying value of the insurance contract liabilities amounted
to 41.68 million and £50.84 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 13).

Estimation of allowance for impairment losses

The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to provide
for potential uncollectible receivables, The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the
basis of factors that affect the collectability of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited
to, the length of the Company’s relationship with the debtors, the debtor’s payment behaviour and
known market factors. The Company reviews the age and status of receivables, and identifies accounts
that are to be provided with allowance on a continuous basis.

In addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and receivables, the Company
also makes a collective impairment allowance against exposures which, although not specifically
identified as requiring specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than when originally granted.
This collective allowance is based on any deterioration in the internal rating of the loan or investment
since it was granted or acquired.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, provision for bad debts amounted to B2.38 million and nil,
respectively. The carrying value of loans and receivables amounted to £84.34 million and
B41.02 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 6).

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets and prepaid assets

The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use, It is possible that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates. A reduction in the estimated
useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded depreciation and amortization expense
and decrease the related asset accounts.

The depreciable amount of intangible assets and the prepaid assets shall be allocated on a systematic
basis over their useful lives. The amortization method shall reflect the pattern in which the asset’s future
economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. These methods include the straight-
line method and the unit of production method (UOP). On the other hand, software (not an integral part
of its related hardware) which is included as part of intangible assets, are capitalized at cost and
amottized over their estimated useful lives of three (3) years. '

In this regard, UOP method of amortization which is based on quantifiable and reliable source (Actual
over Target production) will be used for the subsequent measurements of the Prepaid Expense Asset,
while the Intangible Assets will be amortized using a straight-line method on its economic life of fifteen
(15) years.
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As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the carrying values of property and equipment amounted to
P168.95 million and £176.25 million, respectively (see Note 9) and the carrying values of intangible
assets amounted to P296.84 million and £310.40 million, respectively (see Note 11).

Employee benefits

The determination of pension obligation and other employee benefits is dependent on the selection of
certain assumptions used in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others,
discount rate, expected return on plan assets, salary increase rate, mortality rate, disability rate and
turnover rates. Due to the fong term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant
uncertainty.

The cost of defined benefit plan and the present value of the pension obligation are determined using
actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.

While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant
differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the
pension obligation, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the present value of pension obligation amounted to 29.11 million
and P13.22 million, respectively (see Note 22).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are computed for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2017 and
2016 since management believes that the benefits will not be realized prior to their expiry dates.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are
not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists oft

2017 2016
Cash on hand P145,000 B135,000
Cash in banks 217,714,865 85,070,457
Cash equivalents 382,800,000 465,966,168

600,659,865 P551,171,625

Cash in banks earns interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates that ranged from 0.25% p.a. to 0.75%
p.a. in 2017 and in 2016. Cash equivalents are made for varying periods not exceeding three (3)
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earned interest at the
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prevailing short-term deposit rates that ranged from 0.25% p.a. to 4.475% p.a. in 2017 and from
0.30% p.a. to 2.05% p.a. in 2016, Interest income earned in 2017 and 2016 amounted to £3.81 million
and B7.36 million, respectively (see Note 19), Interest accrued amounted to 0.30 million and £0.41
million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 8).

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments consist of time deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than
oneg year from date of placement amounting to P37.00 million and nil as of December 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively. The annual interest rate is 1.75% p.a. and 0.80% p.a. in 2017 and 2016,
respectively. Interest income earned in 2017 and 2016 amounted to 0.22 million and P0.53 million,
respectively (see Note 19). Interest accrued amounted to 20,18 million and nil as of December 31,
2017 and 20186, respectively (see Note 8).

Financial Assets

The Company’s financial assets are summarized as follows:

2017 2016
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets P1,294,943,086 P1,007,475,085

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL) 248,401,101 214,571,439
Assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities 6,643,597,454 3,405,976,122
Loans and receivables- net 84,335,995 41,022,760
P8,271,277,636 P4,669,045,406

AFS financial gssets

This account consists of’

At Carrying Amount At Fair value
2017 2016 2017 2016
Government debt securities P1,223,932,824  P930,056,712 B1,205,552,883 P918,434,815
Corporate debt securities 92,685,147 03,660,133 89,390,203 89,040,270

P1,316,617,971 P1,023,716,845 P1,294,943,086 P1,007,475,085

The carrying values of AI'S financial assets are as follows:

2017 2016
At January | P1,007,475,085 539,975,469
Additions 460,431,426 072,251,425
Disposals/maturities {165,000,000) (488,232,805)
Fair value losses (5,433,125) (13,795,631)
Amortization of premium (2,530,300) (2,723,373)
At December 31 P1,294,943,086 #1,007,475,085

Investments in debt securities bear interest ranging from 2.125% p.a. to 7.00% p.a. in 2017 and 2.125%
p.a. to 7.00% p.a. in 2016. Interest earned on bonds, classified as AFS financial assets, amounted to
P37.90 million in 2017 and $£23.83 million in 2016 (see Note 19). Interest accrued amounted to 7.98
million and B9.55 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2011 6, respectively (see Note 8).
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As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, AFS financial assets amounting to £250.00 million are deposited
with the IC in accordance with the provisions of the Code as security for the benefit of policyholders

and creditors of the Company.

The rollforward analyses of unrealized fair value loss on AFS financial assets follow:

2016
At January 1 £16,241,760 P2,446,129
Loss on sale of AFS financial assets 1,737,805
Unrealized fair value loss 12,057,826
At December 31 $21,674,885 B16,241,760

“Unrealized fair value loss on AFS financial assets” records the difference between the amortized

cost and fair value of AFS debt securities.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL represent the seed capital of the Company in its three (3) Peso VUL Funds
and one (1} USD VUL Fund at initial amount of £220.00 million and USD0.50 million respectively.
The carrying amount of financial assets at FVPL amounted to P248.40 million and £214.57 million in

2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 7).

Loans and receivabies
This account consists oft

2017 2016

Fund management fee receivable B23,944,994 213,826,113
Receivable from related parties (Note 24) 15,518,833 1,956,054
Receivables from agents (Note 10) 14,884,968 7,540,598
Premium receivable 12,016,832 -
Receivable from VUL funds 8,776,347 13,084,280
Employee loans and advances 6,273,887 4,565,644
Premium due and uncollected-net 4,670,079 50,071
Reinsurance receivable 632,779 -
86,718,719 41,022,760

Less allowance for bad debts 2,382,724 -
B84,335,995 241,022,760

Fund management fee receivable pertains to unpaid fees relating to VUL funds of the Company and is
accrued daily and collected from the BPI and SBC managed funds on a monthly basis and quarterly

basis, respectively.

Receivable from agents includes amounts to be recovered from agents resulting from clawback of
prepaid developmental fees paid for failure to meet the contractual obligations as stated in contract

and loans, cost of lost tablets, cost of trainings and memberships.

Premium receivable pertains to premiums of issued group insurance policies for remittance to the

Company which is collected within the year.

Receivables from VUL funds consist of uncollected proceeds from surrenders and withdrawals of cost

of insurance (COI) and cost of rider (COR). -
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Employee loans and advances are non-interest bearing and are settled through payroll deductions.

Premium due and uncollected-net pertains to premium earned, net of loadings, awaiting collection

within the grace period from the date premium is due.

Reinsurance receivable pertains to recovery for paid claims from reinsurer,

Provision for bad debts amounted to £2.38 million and nil in 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note
21). The Company provides for bad debts based on specific assessment of outstanding balances.

The Company classifies its non-linked and unit-linked financial assets at fair value as follows:

2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value:
AFS financial assets £1,294,943,086 B- B- P1,294,943,086
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 7) 248,401,101 - - 248,401,101
Assets held to cover unit-linked
liabilities (Note 7) 6,643,597,454 — - 6,643,597,454
$£8,186,941,641 P P~ P8,186,941,641
2016
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value:
AFS financial assets P1,007,475,085 B P~ P1,007,475,085
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 7) 214,571,439 — - 214,571,439
Assets held to cover unit-linked
liabilities (Note 7) 3,405,976,122 — - 3,405,976,122
£4,628,022,646 P P4,628,022,646

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurement.

Unit-Linked Funds

The total unit-linked funds of the Company are allocated as follows:

2017
BPI Funds
Balanced Fund  Equity Fund Fixed Income Total
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 6) B84,677,117 P-  P84,046,281 P168,723,398
Assets held te cover unit-linked
liabilities (Note 6) 234,362,578 833,689,078 134,539,589 1,202,591,245
£319,039,695 P833,689,078 P218,585,870 P1,371,314,643
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SBC Funds
FWD Peso
FWD Peso FWD Peso FWD FPess  High Dividend FWD Equity
Stable Fund  Bond Fund  Growth Fund Equity  Index Fund Total
Finamcial assets at
FVPL (Note 6) B- B- B- B-  P53,167,093 P33,167,093
Assets held to cover
unit-linked
liabilities (Note 6) 411,528,530 210,808,050  2,596,347,884  1,707,559,803 196,787,791  5,123,032,058
P411,528,530 P210,808,050 £2,596,347,884 PB1,707,559,803 249,554,884 P5,176,199,151
Doltar Equity Index Fund FWD Global Dollar
Equity Index Fund Total
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 6) £26,510,610 £26,510,610
Assets held to cover unit-linked liabilities (Note 6) 317,974,151 317,974,151
P344,484,761  $344,484,761
016
BPI Funds
Balanced Fund Equity Fund _ Fixed Income Total
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 6) P82.414,118 P47.397,772 £84,759,549 P214,571,439
Assets held to cover unit-linked
liabilities (Note 6) 122,513,110 385,432,762 101,091,735 609,037,607
£204,927,228 P432,830,534 P185,851,284 P823,609,046
SBC Funds FWD Peso
FWID) Peso FWD Peso FWD Peso  High Dividend
Stable Fund  Bond Fund Growth Fund Equity Total

Assets beld to cover unit-linked
liabilities (Note 6)

P278,901,670 P159,678,830

P1,456,635,279

P001,722,736

£2,796,938,515

The unit-linked funds’ net asset values consist of the following:

2017

BPI Funds Balanced Fund Equity Fund Fixed Income TOTAL
ASSET

Cash and cash equivalents 18,426,004 £74,868,487 $£6,073,165 £99,367,656
Debt securities 225,674,689 - 210,138,178 435,812,867
Equity sccurities 61,096,509 749,067,828 - 810,164,337
Accrued income 3,215,205 587,240 2,977,314 6,779,759
Other receivables 12,134,435 13,667,116 799,626 26,601,177
TOTAL ASSETS £320,546,842 B3838,190,671 P219,988,283  £1,378,725,796
LIABILITIES

Amounts payable on redemption of units P238,816 £1,566,026 B533,738 £2,338,580
Other payables 1,268,331 2,935,567 868,675 5,072,573
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,507,147 4,501,593 1,402,413 7,411,153
NET ASSET VALUE £319,039,695 P£833,689,078 P218,585,870 B1,371,314,643
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FWD Peso FWD Equity
FWD Peso FWD Peso FWD Peso High Dividend Index Fund
SBC Funds Stable Fund  Bond Fund  Growth Fund Eqguity TOTAL
ASSET
Cash and cash
equivalents P P- P B P14,792,010 214,792,010
Other investments -
feeder fund 411,528,530 210,808,050  2,596,347,884 1,707,559,803 - 4,926,244,267
Equity securities - - - - 242,287,385 242,287,385
Accrued income - - - - 175,381 175,381
Other receivables — - - — 6,538,154 6,538,154
TOTAL ASSETS P411,528,530 P210,808,050 $2,596,347,884 B1,707,559,803 £263,792,930 P5,190,037,197
LIABILITIES
Amounts payable on
redemption of units B P- P~ P- B153,576 P153,576
Other payables — - — — 13,684,470 13,684,470
TOTAL
LIABILITIES - - — - 13,838,046 13,838,046
NET ASSET VALUE P411,528,530 P210,808,050 £2,596,347,884 P1,707,559,803  P249,954,884 B5,176,199,151
FWD Global Dollar
Dollar Equity Funds Equity Index Fund TOTAL
ASSET
Cash and cash equivalents £47,500,094 47,500,094
Other Investments - Feeder Fund - -
Equity securities 311,240,882 311,240,889
Accrued income - -
Other receivables 30,943,787 30,943,787
TOTAL ASSETS 389,684,770 £389,684,770
LIABILITIES
Amounts payable on redemption of units P44,575,627 Pd44,575,027
Other payables 624,982 624,982
TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,200,609 45,200,009
NET ASSET VALUE 344,484,761 £344,484,761
016
BPI Funds Balanced Fund Equity Fund Fixed Income TOTAL
ASSET
Cash and cash equivalents P36,395,471 P41,617,335 £36,133,437 P114,146,243
Debt securities 136,064,615 - 147,505,174 283,569,789
Equity securities 26,174,900 381,712,576 - 407,887,476
Accrued income 1,774,430 364,858 1,949,211 4,088,499
Other receivables 5,242,633 12,936,379 744,085 18,923,097

TOTAL ASSETS P205,652,049 P436,631,148 P186,331,907 P828,615,104
LIABILITIES
Amounts payable on redemption of units P190,535 P2,639,618 P60,282 P£2,890,435
Other payables 534,286 1,160,996 420,341 2,115,623
TOTAL LIABILITIES 724,821 3,800,614 480,623 5,006,058
NET ASSET YVALUE $204,927,228 P432,830,534 P135,851,284 823,609,046
FWD Peso

FWD Peso FWD Peso FWD Peso  High Dividend
SBC Funds Stable Fund Bond Fund _ Growth Fund Eguity TOTAL
ASSET
Other investments - feeder fund B278,901,670 P159,678,830 P1,456,635279  $£901,722,736 $2,796,938,515
NET ASSET VALUE $278901,670  P159,678,830 P1,456,635279  $901,722,736 P2,796,938,515
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The movements in the unit-linked fund’s net assets follow:

2017 2016
At January 1 P3,620,547,561 £1,795,020,741
Contributions 3,228,172,017  2,211,683,665
Redemptions {812,355,739) (248,631,748)
Fair value gain {loss) 855,634,716 (137,525,097
At December 31 P6,891,998,555 B3,620,547,561

Investment in debt securities in the unit-linked funds bear interest ranging from 2.13% p.a. to 12.13%

p.a. in 2017 and 3.5% p.a. to 8.00% p.a. in 2016.

In 2017, the Company has launched additional VUL funds, FWD Peso Equity Index Fund and FWD

Global Dollar Equity Index Fund which are both invested in equity securities.

All financial assets at FVPL represent seed capital invested by the Company in VUL funds while assets

held to cover unit-linked liabilities represent policyholders’ money invested into these funds.

Breakdown of the fair value gain (loss) pertaining to net income (loss) of unit-linked funds in 2017

and 2016 are as follow:

2017 2016

Dividend income R10,148,812 P4,550,081

Interest income 18,631,867 9,417,776
Unrealized loss on investments 901,159,376 (119,162,199)
Realized gain on investments 17,462,510 8,594,424
Total loss 947,402,565 (96,599,918)
Management fees (71,334,009) (36,970,645)
Other operating expenses (16,316,216) (1,768,300}
Total expenses (87,650,225) (38,738,945)
Net loss before final tax 859,752,340 (135,338,863)
Provision for final tax (4,117,624) (2,186,234)
Unit-linked gain (loss) after final tax P855,634,716 (R137,525,097)

8. Accrued Income
This account congists of:

2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) B297,286 B409,464

Short-term investment (Note 5) 175,544 -

AFS financial assets (Note 6) 7,983,024 9,548,119

8,455,854 B9,957,583
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9. Property and Equipment - net
The rollforward analyses of this account follow:
2017
EDP Office Motor Leaschold Furniture
Equipment Equipment vehicles Improvements and Fixtures Total
Cost
At January 1 P141,662,669 B6,797,812 PY,562,830 P126,963,948 P§,782,244  P293,769,503
Additions 23,761,047 3,736,828 - 37,873,557 16,995,966 76,367,398
At December 31 165,423,716 10,534,640 9,562,830 164,837,565 19,778,210 370,136,901
Accumulated depreciation
At January | 74,142,320 3,058,894 4,583,782 33,773,874 1,961,583 117,520,453
Depreciation (Note 21) 43,746,072 2,793,405 1,912,566 29,912,429 5,306,361 83,670,840
At December 31 117,388,399 5,852,299 6,496,348 63,656,303 7,267,944 201,191,793
Net Book Value P47,535,317 P4,682,341 £3,066,482 P101,151,202 P12,510,266  P168,945,608
016
EDP Office Motor Leasehold Furniture
Equipment Equipment vehicles  Improvements and Fixtures Total
Cost
At January | R94,834,528 P4,116,179 £9.139,572 P63,681,327 P2.410816  P174,182,422
Additions 46,828,141 2,681,633 423,258 63,282,621 6,371,428 119,587,081
At December 31 141,662,669 6,797,812 9,562,830 126,963,948 8,782,244 293,769,503
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1 34,460,098 1,284,677 2,748,813 16,639,426 166,370 55,299,384
Depreciation (Note 21) 36,682,222 1,774,217 1,834,969 17,134,448 1,795,213 62,221,069
Af December 31 74,142,320 3,058,894 4,583,782 33,773,874 1,961,583 117,520,453
Net Book Value P67,520,349 £3,738,918 4,979,048 P93,196,074 £6,820,661 B176,249,050
10. Prepaid Assets
The rollforward analyses of this account follow:
017
Developmental Prepaid
SBC Access fee fees Commission Prepayments Total
Cost
At January | £3060,000,000 B 253,613,343 B- P93,569,650 P647,182,993
Additions - 210,894,426 1,424,200 178,436,974 390,755,600
At December 31 304,000,000 464,507,769 1,424,200 272,006,624 1,037,938,593
Accumulated amortization
At January 1 129,861,549 80,154,984 - 42,291,987 252,308,520
Amortization {(Note 21) 91,268,531 169,666,858 - 185,765,742 437,701,131
At December 31 221,134,080 240,821,842 - 228,057,729 690,109,651
Net Book Value £78,869,920 P223,685,927 21,424,200 P43,948,895 P347,928,942
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016

SBC Access fee  Developmental fees Prepayments Total
Cost
At January 1 £300,000,000 P85,173,839 P35,048,587 B42(,222 426
Additions - 174,820,414 58,521,063 233,341,477
Reclassification to receivable
from agents - (6,380,910) - (6,380,910
At December 31 300,000,000 253,613,343 93,569,650 647,182,993
Accumulated amortization
At January 1 38,875,706 11,211,682 7,915,550 78,002,978
Amortization (Note 21) 70,985,843 72,813,580 34,376,397 178,175,820
Reclassification to receivable
from agents - (3,870,278) — {3,870,278)
At December 31 129,861,549 80,154,984 42,291,987 252,308,520
Net Book Vaiue P170,138,451 £173,458,359 B51,277.663 B194,874 473

Prepaid access fee pertains to refundable portion of the Exclusive Access fees stated in the Distribution
Agreement (IDA) between the Company and SBC, in case of early termination of the DA and non-
achievement of the Annualized New Premium (ANP) targets stated in the DA, This is amortized based
on UOP and presented under “Commission expense and agency-related expenses™ in the profit or loss
{see Note 21},

Prepaid developmental fees paid to agency leaders are to be used exclusively in building and
maintaining an agency organization for the purpose of selling solely the Company’s products. This is
to be amortized based on the agents’ contractual obligation to the Company as indicated in the
agreement (see Note 27). Failure to meet the contractual obligations indicated in the agreement, the
Company is authorized by the agents to clawback the unamortized amount of prepaid development fees
paid. This will be converted to receivable from the agent and will be reported under “Loans and
receivables”. Amortization expense is reported under “Commission expense and agency-related
expenses” in the profit or loss (see Note 21).

Prepayments consist mainly of property rental advances, software maintenance fee advances and
license fees with terms over one year.

11.

Intangible Assets - net

The rollforward analyses of this account follow:

2017
SBC

Access fee Software Total
Cost
At January 1 £300,000,000 P68.850,299 P368,850,299
Additions - 46,367,017 46,367,017
At December 31 300,000,000 115,217,316 415,217,316
Accumulated Amortization
At January | 40,000,000 18,448,451 58,448,451
Amortization (Note 21) 20,600,000 33,210,570 53,210,570
Impairment losses (Note 21) — 6,714,664 6,714,664
At December 31 60,000,000 58,373,685 118,373,685
Net book value P240,000,000 £56,843,631 P296,843,631

LB



233 .-

2016
SBC

Access fee Software Total
Cost
At January 1 B300,000,000 B5,194.615 £305,194,615
Additions — 03,655,684 63,655,684
At December 31 300,000,000 68,850,299 368,850,299
Accumulated Amortization
At Janvary 1 20,000,000 - 144,295 20,144,295
Amortization (Note 21) 20,000,000 18,304,156 38,304,156
At December 31 40,000,000 18,448,451 58,448,451
Net book value £260,000,000 £50,401,848 B310,401,848

SBC access fee pertains to the non-refundable portion of Exclusive Access Fees paid to SBC on January
22, 2015, This is not a direct compensation for the production, but rather a purchase of a right and
amortized until the estimated economic life of DA which is fifteen (15) years. Amortization expense is
reported under “Commission expense and agency-related expenses” in the profit or loss (see Note 21).

Software includes system applications purchased from third parties. In 2017, impairment loss was
recognized as a result of Company’s assessment that the purchased system application is no longer used
for its intended purpose.

12,

Other Assets

This account consists of:

2017 2016
Rental deposits B33,657,412 221,826,379
Sundry depaosits 11,289.567 6,376,213
Creditable withhoiding taxes 2,547,693 518,584
Security fund 70,089 70,089

P47,564,761 P28,791,265

Rental deposits include security and reservation deposits. These items were transacted by the
Company with W Fifth Building for its Head Office, Limketkai Sons, Inc. for CDO branch office,
Asian [-Office Properties Inc. for Cebu branch office, Development Bank of the Philippines for
Baguio branch office, MDI Group Holdings, Inc. for SGA BGC branch office, BDO Unibank Inc. for
Makati branch office, Bormaheco Incorporated for Davao branch office, 21% Drive Land Corporation
for Del Rosario branch office, Mango Suites for Santiago branch office and V. Ladia Rental Space for
Malolos branch office (see Note 27).

Sundry deposits pertain mainly to construction bonds refundable from contractors upon completion of
construction period

Creditable withholding taxes represent taxes withheld from the Company by its life insurance clients
and collection partners. The amount is fully realizable and could be applied against future income tax
liability of the Company.

Security fund pertains to contribution of the Company to the Security Fund - Life Account as required
by the Insurance Commission on all insurance companies authorized to do business in the Philippines.
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13. Insurance Contract Liabilities - net

Insurance contract liabilities - net consist of:

2017 2016
Policy and contract claims reserve P28,954,195 £3,189,233
Legal policy reserves 12,724,131 47,653,816
£41,678,326 P50,843,049
The movements during the year in policy and contract claims reserve are as follows:
2017 2016
At January 1 3,189,234 P1,452,440
Provision during the year 25,764,961 1,736,793
At December 31 P28,954,195 23,189,233
Details of the legal policy reserves follow:
2017 2016
Gross legal policy reserves
Unit-linked insurance contracts P117,811,789 B53,381,476
Life insurance contracts (101,836,416) (5,323,123)
15,975,373 48,058,353
Reinsurer’s share in legal policy reserves
Unit-linked insurance contracts 2,573,256 404,537
Life insurance contracts 677,986 -
3,251,242 404,537
Insurance contract liabilities - net P12,724,131 P47,653,816

The movements in legal policy reserves, net of reinsurers’ share, during the year follow:

2017 2016
At January 1 B47,653,816 (B537,853)
Due to change in discount rates 4,525,940 (46,348)
Due to change in policies and assumptions (39,455,625) 48,238,017
December 31 P12,724,131 47,653,816

The movements during the year in remeasurement gain (loss) on life insurance reserves follow:

2017 2016
At January 1 £113,559 267,211
Due to change in discount rates (4,525,940) 46,348

At December 31 (P4,412,381) B113,559
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14, Insurance Payables

Insurance payables consist of premiums received for which the policy contract has vet to be issued or

policy claims yet to be paid amounting to £47.05 million and £37.32 million as of December 31,

2017 and 2016, respectively.

15.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of’

2017 2016

Accruals for:
Distribution compensation P215,442,720 B182,343,841
Employee incentives 105,466,886 95,071,048
Suppliers® invoices 93,247,476 127,077,009
Unit linked purchases 85,603,102 50,300,860
Commissions payable 40,073,440 5,451,489
Reinsurance payable 23,409,462 10,399,943
Deferred rental payable 13,195,032 8,251,416
Qthers 1,049,987 295,959
P577,488,105 £479,191,565

Accrued distribution compensation include agency and bancassurance channel related sales expenses,
such as commissions, bank fees, variable pay, bonuses and incentives. These are normally settled within
one year.

Accrued employee incentives represent estimated amount of short-term incentives (STI) and long-
term incentives (LTI). STI is payable within one year while LTI is payable after three (3) years.

Accrued suppliers’ invoices include unpaid invoices for distribution and operating related expenses,
utilities and capital expenditures and are normally settled within one year.

Accrued unit-linked purchases pertain to subscriptions to be transferred to unit-linked fonds. These
are non-interest bearing and are payable the following month.

1

Reinsurance payable pertains to premiums due to reinsurers which are non-interest bearing.

Deferred rental payable pertains to the lease rate differential adjustment to align lease expense with
PAS 17, Leases.

Commissions payable pertain to agency sales force commissions which are non-interest
bearing and payable weekly.

Other payables include deposits paid by the agents for their IC licensing fee, frust fees and payments
due to Philhealth, SSS and HDMF which are to be remitted the following month.
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16. Taxes Payable

This account consists of

2017 2016
Expanded withholding tax P13,131,747 BO,858,991
Withholding tax on compensation 9,678,876 6,435,781
Premium tax payable 4,123,784 2,703,732
Final withholding tax 1,391,799 10,414,468
Withholding VAT payable 1,760,618 5,304,301

£30,086,824 B34,717,273

Taxes payable are normally settled the following month after year-end.

17. Equity

Capital Stock
This account consists of common shares of stock as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 as follows:

Iyv )

01

~2

Authorized - 2,300,000,000 shares, B1 par value
Issued and outstanding - 2,300,000,000 shares £2,300,000,000

[\

01

™

Authorized - 1,000,000,000 shares, P1 par value
Issued and outstanding - 1,000,000,000 shares £1,000,000,000

The movements of the Company’s common share follow:

2017 2016
At January | 1,000,000,000  1,000,0000,000
Issuance of shares 1,300,000,000 —
At December 31 2,300,000,000 1,000,000,000

The Company has only one class of common shares which carry no right to fixed income.

On April 11, 2016, the BOD approved the increase in authorized capital stock from 21,000.00 million
to 5,000,000 million.

On June 17, 2016, the BOD approved the subscription by the Parent Company of 1,000,000,000
common shares at par value of Bl per share for the aggregate subscription price of B1,000.0¢ million
and the subscription payment of 8250.00 million payable in cash, in compliance with the 25%
subscription and payment rule under Section 38 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines. This is
recorded as Contingency Surplus,
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On March 21, 2017, the Company issued additional shares of 1,300,000,000 through the conversion
of 21,300.00 million contingency surplus. The approval for the conversion of Contingency Surplus to

additional subscription of Capital Stock was granted by the Insurance Commission on September 26,
2016.

Contributed Surplus
The BOD approved the infusion of additional contributed surplus amounting to 1,050.00 million in
2016. .

Contingency Surplus '
The BOD approved the infusion of additional contingency surplus amounting to 21,180.00 million
and £1,550.00 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

On March 21, 2017, 1,300.00 million was converted to Capital Stock at B1.00 par value.

18. Insurance Premiums - net
The net insurance premiums consists of:

2017 2016

Premium revenue arising from contracts issued
Unit-linked insurance contracts

$4,430,898,242

P3,019,149,712

Life insurance contracts 140,367,698 5,498,770
4,571,265,940  3,024,648,482
Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers
on contracts issued
Unit-linked insurance coniracts (14,839,510) (8,641,078)
Life insurance contracts {6,559,972) (277,114)
(21,399,482) (8,918,192)
Net insurance premiums earned £4,549,866,458 £3,015,730,290
19. Investment and Management Fee Income
This account consists of?
2017 2016
Interest income on:
AFS financial assets (Note 6) B37,904,549 P23,830,468
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) 3,813,566 7,357,367
Short-term investments (Note 5) 219,430 534,640
41,937,545 31,722,475
Management fee on:
Seed capital 3,986,546 3,916,004
Policyholder’s fund asset value 71,334,009 36,970,645
75,320,555 40,886,649
P117,258,100 272,609,124
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Interest income pertains to the interest earned on government and corporate debt securities, time
deposits and short-term investments.

Management fee income pertains to fees earned for managing the VUL funds.

20. Net Benefits and Claims

Insurance benefits and claims incurred consist of:

2017 2016
Death and hospitalization benefits P44,687,636 10,140,666
Surrenders 424,430,162 49,544,198
Gross benefits and claims 469,117,798 59,684,864
Reinsurers’ share in benefits and claims - 400,000
B469,117,798 B59,284,864
21. Operating Expenses
General and administrative expenses consists of:
2017 2016
Salaries, wages and employees benefits $612,197,290 B463,586,909
Marketing expenses 124,030,972 136,472,826
Professional fees 114,646,375 93,074,348
Building rental and related expenses (Note 27) 109,149,548 69,365,446
Depreciation (Note 9) 83,670,840 62,221,069
Information technology costs 80,234,794 89,510,400
Taxes, licenses and fees 40,314,499 39,827,253
Transportation and travel 35,375,847 26,319,956
Amortization (Note [1) 33,210,570 18,304,156
Communication, light and water 26,867,185 20,492,711
Supplies 26,508,265 24,222,500
Distribution training 16,832,262 12,026,487
Entertainment 10,743,223 4,604,972
Provision for impairment losses (Note 11) 6,714,664 -
Others 13,837,821 7,134,706
P1,334,334,155 P1,067,163,739
Salaries, allowances and benefits consist of’
2017 2016
Salaries and wages P472,145,100 £360,788,919
Benefits and allowances 136,225,275 84,131,119
Net pension expense (Note 22) 3,826,915 18,666,871
P612,197,290 P463,586,909
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Commission expense and agency-related expenses consists oft

2017 2016
Commission expense £761,969,504 £525,413,369
Commission-related expenses (CRE) 405,367,833 308,612,344
Amortization of:
Prepaid access fee (Note 10) 91,268,531 70,985,843
Intangible asset (SBC access fee) (Note 11) 20,000,000 20,000,000
Prepaid developmental fees (Note 10) 160,666,858 72,813,580
Provision for bad debt (Note 6) 2,382,724 -
Distribution operation expenses 27,906,161 17,724,580

P1,469,561,611 P[,015,549,716

Commission-related expenses consist mainly of bonuses such as annual performance bonus and
annual over-achievement bonus given to bancassurance agents, and incentives and allowances given
to agents for the issuance of policy contracts (see Note 27).

22. Employee Benefits

The Company has a non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan, covering all employees from
the start of the date of employment which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered retirement fund. The plan is effective January 1, 2016, and was approved by the Bureau
of Internal Revenue (BIR) last May 3, 2017. Under the plan, the Company makes contributions on
behalf of the employees but it allows employees to participate in the plan by way of voluntary
contributions,

Upon normal retirement, the employee shall be entitled to a lump sum benefit equal to the following:

1) One hundred percent (100%) of individual account balance in the defined benefit plan attributable
to employee voluntary contributions as of the most recent valuation date prior to normal
retirement date and adjusted for subsequent contributions, if any,

2) And the higher of:

a) One hundred percent (100%) of individual account balance in the defined benefit plan
attributable to employer voluntary contributions as of the most recent valuation date prior to
normal retirement date and adjusted for subsequent contributions, if any,

b) One hundred percent (100%) of employee’s monthly salary for every year of service or the
minimum statutory requirement at the time of the employee’s retirement whichever is higher.

The Company recognized pensien expense relating to its defined benefit plan included in the
statement of cornprehensive income which consists of:

2017 2016
Current service cost $3,086,736 P2,176,953
Net interest expense 740,179 815,091
Transition liability - 15,674,827

B3,826,915 P18,666,871

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the present value of the obligation as shown in the statement of
financial position amounted to 89.11 million and 213.22 million, respectively.
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The reconciliation of the present value of the pension benefit obligation follows:

2017 2016
At January 1 P13,217,480 P
Additional transition liability - 15,674,827
Interest expense 740,179 815,091
Currenf service cost 3,086,736 2,176,953
Actuarial gain on obligation (7,934,261) (5,449,391)
At December 31 £9,110,134 P13,217,480

The roliforward analysis of remeasurement gain on pension obligation follows:

2017 2016

At January 1 P5,449,391 P
Actuarial gain on obligation

Experience adjustment 7,065,028 3,425,024

Change in financial assumptions 869,233 2,024,367

7,934,261 5,449,391

At December 31 P13,383,652 £5,446,391

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining net pension cost for the Company’s
retirement plan are shown below:

2017 2016
Salary increase rate 8.00% 8.00%
Discount rate 5.80% 5.60%
Expected average remaining working lives 14 years 15 years

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in discount rates and
salary increase for the next financial year, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s
total comprehensive income using the projected unit cost (PUC) method:

Impact on total
Change in comprehensive

Assutnptions income

Discount rate +0.50% P7,126,214
-0.50% 11,369,158

Salary rate +(.50% 11,270,973
-0.50% 7,184,397

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s benefit liabilities based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period.

Year 2017 2016

1-5 years P7,376,243 B7,633,155
6-10 years 7,317,568 6,628,310
11-15 years 47,102,764 22,255,101
16 years and up 835,475,070 667,565,587

$8§97,271,645 B704,082,153
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23,

Foreign Currency Exchange Losses

This account consists of realized foreign currency exchange losses amounting to 211.15 million and
P0.12 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

24,

Related Party Disclosures

Transactions between related parties are based on terms similar to those offered to nonrelated parties.
Parties are related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions and the parties
are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or
corporate entities.

Related party transactions consist of the following:

2017 2016
Outstanding Outstanding
Category Amount Balances Armount Balances  Terms Conditions
Receivable from Affiliates:
FWD Group Management Holdings 13,560,875 £14,387,922 827,048 2827048 Interest-free, setifement Unsecured
Lid. in cash; annual
FWD Vietnam 1,905 933,496 931,591 931,591 Interest-free, settlement Unsecured
in cash; annuat
FWD Thailand - 08,533 08,533 98,533 Interest-free, settlement Unsecured
in cash; annunat
FWD Singapore - 83,104 83,104 83,104 Interest-free, settlement Unsecured
in cash; annual
FWD I[ndonesia - 15,778 15,778 15,778 Interest-free, settlement Unsecured

in casgh; annual

P13,562,780  P15,518,833 B1,056,054 B1,756,054

2017 2016
Outstanding Qutstanding
Category Amount Balances Amount Balances Terms Conditions
Payable to Affiliates:
FWD Group Management £388,095,481 E157,029,273 RBG,310,400 168,933,792 Interest-free, settlement  Unsecured
Heldings Lid. (a) (Note 21) in cash; annual
Valdimir Pte. Lid. (b) 4,306,779 4,306,779 1,169,645 2,933,153  Interest-free, setilement Unsecured

in cash; annual

$92,402,260 P261,336,052  PO0G80,045  PI71.866,045

In the normal course of business, the Company has various transactions with its related companies as
follows:

a. The amount due to FWD Group Management Holdings Ltd. is in respect of expenditure incurred
on behalf of the Company and comprised mainly of the costs of purchasing and installing IT
systems of the Company.

b. The amount due to Valdimir Pte. Ltd. is in respect of brand licensing agreement (royalty fees) for
the Company’s use of the FWD brand name which is based in the Company’s production for the
year and expenditure on behalf of the Company. The royalty fees is based in the Company’s
production for the year,
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¢. The outstanding receivable from FWD Group Management Holdings Ltd. includes group initiated
projects and initiatives costs which was locally launch in 2017, Other receivables to affiliates
pertains to meetings and travel-related expenses incurred by Company officers for initially
shouldered by the Company and will be recovered upon charge-back

Outstanding balances are non-interest bearing, unsecured and will be settled in cash on an annual basis.
No guarantees had been received or given.

Remunerations of Key Management Personnel
The Company’s key management personnel include all management committee officers. The
summary of compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

2017 2016
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits R196,863,913 P184,327,914
Other long-term benefits 15,658,791 19,534,848
Pension expense 1,502,988 401,476

P214,025,692 P204,264,238

25,

Income Taxes

The provision for current income tax of P8.90 million and 26.93 million for 2017 and 2016,
respectively, represents the final tax on interest income.

Reconciliation between provision for income tax and the income tax at statutory income tax rate
follows:

2017 2016
Provision for income tax at sfatutory tax rate (284,432,065) (322,499,899
Tax effects of:
Interest income subjected to final tax {4,444,452) (3,401,680)
Non-taxable income (256,690,415) -
Non-deductible expenses 2,300,123 42,813,202
Expired NOLCO 93,289,140 3,999,664
Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets 458,873,570 286,020,787
Effective income tax £8,895,901 B6,932,074

Under Republic Act No. 8424, the Company is subject to regular corporate income tax (RCIT) of 30%
or 2% Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT), whichever is higher. However, the Company is
required to file MCIT beginning on the 4th taxable year immediately following the taxable year in
which such corporation commenced its business operations. MCIT computed for 2017 is nil.

Details of the Company’s NOLCO that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable profit are as
follows:

Year Incurred NOLCO Tax Effect  Year of Expiry
2017 PB1,695,298,931 B508,589,679 2020
2016 881,489,739 264,446,922 2019
2015 307,695,940 92,308,782 2018

P2,884,484,610 £865,345,383
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NOLCO incurred in 2014 amounting to £310.96 miilion expired in 2017.

Deferred Tax Assets

The Company did not recognize deferred tax assefs amounting to B1,011.61 million and
P551.44 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, from the following temporary
differences since management believes that the benefits will most likely not be realized prior to their
expiry dates.

2017 2016
NOLCO P2,884,484,610 P1,500,149,480
Accrued expenses 424,035,416 313,327,473
Provision for staff retirement fund 9,110,134 13,217,480
Provision for IBNR reserves 28,954,195 3,189,233
Deferred rent payable 13,195,031 8,251,416

£3,359,779,386  P1,838,135,082

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent probable that its taxable income will be available
against which the deferred tax assets can be used. The Company will reassess the unrecognized
deferred tax assets on the above deductible temporary differences and will recognize deferred tax
assets to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income would allow the deferred
tax assets to be recovered.

26.

Capital Management and Management of Insurance and Financial Risk

Governance Framework

The Company has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference and with the
responsibility for developing policies on market, credit, liquidity, insurance and operational risk. It also
supports the effective implementation of policies at the overall company and individual  business
unit levels.

The policies define the Company’s identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure
the appropriate quality and diversification of assets, align underwriting and reinsurance strategies to the
corporate goals and specify reporting requirements.

Regulatory Framework

Regulators are interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and maintain close vigil to ensure
that the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators
are also interested in ensuring that the Company maintains appropriate solvency position to meet
liabilities arising from claims and that the risk levels are at acceptable levels,

The operations of the Company are subject to the regulatory requirements of the IC. Such regulations
not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions
(e.g. fixed capitalization requirements and risk-based capital (RBC) requirements) to minimize the
risk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet the unforeseen liabilities
as these arise.

Capital Management Framework

The Company maintains a certain level of capital to ensure sufficient solvency margins and to
adequately protect the policyholders. The level of capital maintained is usually higher than the
minimum capital requirements set by the regulators and the amount computed under the RBC
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Requirement Model.

Fixed capitalization requirements

Pursuant to the provision of Section 194 of the New Insurance Code (“the Code™), no new life or non-
life insurance business will be licensed in the Philippines unless it has paid-up capital of One Billion
Pesos (£1,000,000,000).

The Code also provided the new capitalization requirement of all existing insurance companies based
on net worth on a staggered basis starting June 30, 2013 up to December 31, 2022. The following
presents the amount of required net worth and the schedule of compliance:

Net worth Compliance Date
£250,000,000 June 30, 2013
550,000,000 December 31,2016
900,000,000 December 31, 2019
1,300,000,000 December 31, 2022

In 2017, the Company fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements.

Unimpaired capital vequirement

IMC 22-2008 provided that for the purpose of determining compliance with the law, rules and
regulations requiring that the paid-up capital should remain intact and unimpaired at all times, the
statement of financial position should show that the net worth or equity is at least equal to the actual
paid-up capital. The Company has complied with the unimpaired capital requirement.

RBC requirements

IC CL No. 2016-68 (Amended Risk-Based Capital (RBC2) Framework) provides the three pillar risk-
based approach to solvency that is adopted by IC: (a) Pillar 1 includes the quantitative requirements in
relation to the calculation of capital requirements and recognition of eligible capital; (b) Pillar 2 covers
the governance and risk management requirement that consist of a supervisory review process which
may include a supervisory adjustment to capital; and (¢) Pillar 3 comprises the disclosure requirements
designed to encourage market discipline. Every life insurance company is quarterly required to
maintain a minimum RBC ratio of 100% and not to fail the trend test. Trend Test has failed, in the event
that all have occurred:

a} The RBC ratio computed for the period (i.e. first quarter) is less than 125% but is not below 100%,
b) The RBC ratio has decreased over the past period, and

¢} The difference between RBC ratio {presented in (i} above) and the decrease in the RBC ratio

(presented in (ii) above) over the past period is less than 100%.

Fatlure to meet the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the insurance company to the corresponding
regulatory intervention which has been defined at various levels.

In addition, IC issued CIL No. 2016-69 (Implementation Requirements for Financial Reporting,
Valuation Standards for Insurance Policy Reserves and Amended RBC2 Framework) which states
RBC2 shall take effect beginning January 1, 2017, This CL also provided for relaxed requirements for
initial implementation for RBC2 as follows:

Level of sufficiency
2017 95" percentile
2018 97.5% percentile
2019 99.5" percentile
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The RBC ratio shall be calculated as Total Available Capital (TAC) divided by the RBC requirement,
TAC, which is the aggregate of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital minus deductions, and RBC requirement are
defined in Section 2 of ICL 2016-66.

The following table shows how the RBC ratio was determined by the Company based on its
calculations:

2017 2016
Net worth £1,326,830,220 B1,040,072,790
RBC requirement 102,267,721 36,655,360
RBC Ratio 1297% 2837%

RBC Ratio for 2016 is still computed based on the old RBC framework.

Product Design and Pricing Risk

Product design risk refers to potential defects in the development of a particular insurance product. The
Company manages product design risk through its product approval process where products are
reviewed against pricing, design and operational risk parameters. All new products and product
enhancements are reviewed and approved by the Group Office and are certified by the Company’s
Chief Actuary.

Product pricing phase starts with reinsurance negotiation, assumption-setting, preparation of product
approval report, review and sign-off by the Group Office of pricing model, key product metrics based
on target range set by Group, and risk assessment and mitigation measures consistent with the risk
management policy of Group. Approved products are then filed with IC and BSP (for Bancassurance
products},

The Company closely monitors the performance of new products and actively manages the product
portfolio to minimize risks in the in-force book and new products.

Insurance Risk

Nature of Risk

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur, including the
uncertainty of the amount and timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk the Company faces
under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of
insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency and severity of claims and actual benefit
amount at the time of claim, and subsequent development of long-term claims.

The variability of risks is improved by diversification of the risk of loss. A large diversified portfolio
of insurance contracts is less likely to be affected across the board by changes in any subset of the
portfolio. The variability of risks is also improved by careful sclection and implementation of
underwriting strategics and guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements,

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the significant factors that could increase the overall
frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in
earlier or more claims than expected. These risks currently do not vary significantly in relation to the
location of the risks insured by the Company while undue concentration by amounts could have an
impact on the severity of benefit payments.
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Terms and conditions

The Company principally writes life insurance where the life of policyholder is insured against death,
illness, injury or permanent disability, usually for a pre-determined amount. Life insurance contracts
currently offered by the Company are mainly unit-linked, accident and health and group life insurance
products. Unit-linked products differ from conventional policies in that a pre-determined percentage of
each premium is allocated to units in a pooled investment fund and the policyholder benefits directly
from the total investment growth and income of the fund.

There are no mitigating terms and conditions that reduce the insured risk accepted for contracts with
fixed, guaranteed terms and fixed future benefits.

The Company has an objective to control and manage insurance risk, and to maintain a strong capital

base to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going-concern. The Company manages

insurance risk through the following mechanism:

e The use and maintenance of sophisticated management information systems that provide up to date,
accurate and reliable data on risk exposure at any point in time;
Actuarial models based on industry past experience and sound actuarial formulations;

¢ Guidelines for concluding insurance contracts and assuming insurance risks;
Pro-active compliance of claims handling procedures to investigate and adjust claims, thereby
ensuring payment of valid claims;

¢ Reinsurance to limit the Company’s exposure to large claims by placing risk with reinsurers
providing high security; and

¢ Eventually, diversification strategy will be implemented to ensure that underwritten risks are well-
diversified in terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography.

Insurance risk is also affected by the policyholders’ rights to terminate the contract, pay reduced
premiums, and cease to pay premiums. Thus, the insurance risk is subject to the behaviour and decisions
of the policyholders.

The Company's concentration of insurance risk, before and after reinsurance, in relation to the type of
insurance contract is as follows:

2017 2016
Variable unit-linked
Gross P31,835,060,088 R19,283,923,326
Net 26,442,065,716 16,264,556,189
Term insurance
Gross 2,554,959,950 395,745,950
Net 1,801,388,724 260,022,975
Group life
Gross 21,710,032,571 418,640,577
Net 20,481,562,658 364,016,030
Total
Gross 56,100,052,609 20,098,309,853
Net 48,725,017,098 16,888,595,194

The risks associated with the life and accident and health products are underwriting risk and investment
risk.
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Underwriting Rigk

Underwriting risk represents the exposure to loss resulting from actual policy experience adversely

deviating from assumptions made in the product pricing. Underwriting risks are brought about by a

combination of the following:

e Mortality risk - risk of loss arising from the policyholders’ death experience being different than
expected.

e Morbidity risk - risk of loss arising from the policyholder’s health experience being different than
expected.

¢ Expense risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected.

e Policyholder decision risk - risk of loss arising from the policyholder behavior (lapses and
surrenders) being different than expected.

The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are evaluated and rate
appropriately. This is largely achieved through the use of health questionnaires and medical screening
in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health conditions family medical history, regular
review of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims handling procedures.
Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria,

Investment Risk

The investment risk represents the exposure to loss resulting from cash flows from invested assets,
primarily long-term fixed rate investments, being less than the cash flows required to meet the
obligations of the expected policy contract liabilities and the necessary return on investments,
Additicnally, there exists a future investment risk associated with certain policies currently in force
which will have premium receipts in the future. That is, the investment of those future premium receipts
may be at a yield below that required to meet future policy liabilities. To maintain an adequate yield to
match the interest necessary to support future policy liabilities, management focus is required to
reinvest the proceeds of the maturing securities and to invest the future premium receipts while
continuing to maintain satisfactory investment guality.

The Company utilizes dynamic asset allocation strategies consistent with its risk appetite framework to
manage investment risk and to ensure sustainable investment returns.

Financial Instruments
The following table sets forth the carrying values and fair values of non-linked and unit-linked financial
assets recognized:

December 31, 2017

Non-Linked Unit Linked
Carrying Carrying
Value Fair Yalue Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P600,659,865 B600,659,865 £161,659,760 P161,659,760
Short-term investment 37,000,000 37,000,000 - -
Receivables 84,335,995 84,335,995 64,083,118 64,083,118
Accrued income 8,455,854 8,455,854 6,955,140 6,955,140
AFS financial assets - - - -
Government and corporate debt
securities 1,316,617,971 1,294,943,086 - -
Financial assets at FVPL - - - -
Debt securities - - 435,812,867 435,812,867
Equity securities - - 1,363,692,611 1,363,692,611
Unit investment trust fund - - 4,926,244,267 4,926,244,267
Total financial assets P2,047,069,685 PB1,025,394,800 £6,958,447,763 £6,958,447,763
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Non-Linked Unit Linked
Carrying Carrying
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial liabilities:
Insurance payables £47,045,625 P47,045,625 B- B-
Accounts payables and accrued
£xpenscs 577,488,105 577,488,105 66,449,210 66,449,210
Payable to related partics 261,336,052 261,336,052 - -
Total financial labilities £885,869,782 P585,869,782 P66,449,210 P66,449,210
December 11, 2016
Non-Linked Unit Linked
Carrying Carrying
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value

Financial assefs;
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents

B551,171,625 B551,171,625

P114,146,243

P114,146,243

Receivables 41,022,760 41,022,760 18,923,097 18,923,097

Accrued income 9,957,583 9,957,583 4,088,499 4,088,499
AFS financial assets

Government and corporate debt

securities 1,023,716,845 1,007,475,085 - -

Financial assets at FVPL

Government securities - - 283,569,789 283,569,789

Equity securities - - 407,887,476 407,887,476
Unit investment trust fund — — 2,796,938,515 2,796,938,515

Total financial assets

1,625,868,813

P1,609,627.053

P3,625.553,619

P3,625,553,619

Financial liabilities:

Insurance payables B37,717,452 £37,717,452 P- P—
Accounts payables and accrued

expenses 479,191,565 479,191,565 5,006,058 5,006,058
Payable to related parties 171,866,945 171,866,945 —

Total financial liabilities B688,775,962 P;88,775,962 B5,006,058 25,006,058

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are estimated as follows:

e Due to the short-term nature of cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables,
accrued income, insurance payables, accrued payables and accrued expenses, payable to related
parties, and amounts payable on redemption, their carrying values reasonably approximate their
fair values at year end.

e The fair value of financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial assets that are actively traded in
organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices (PDST R2/BSP
813 Reference rate for bonds and PSE closing price for equities), at the close of business on the
reporting date, or the last trading day as applicable.

Financial Risk

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets and financial liabilities. In
particular, the key financial risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund
the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of this financial
risk are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. These risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements.

The Company has established a risk management function with terms of reference and with
responsibility for developing policies on market, credit, liquidity, insurance and operational risk. The
investment policies define the Company’s limit structure to ensure the appropriate quality and
diversification of assets, in accordance with the Code.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company manages the level of credit risk it accepts
through a credit risk policy which focuses on minimizing credit risk exposures. The credit risk policie

are set as follows: '

a. Concentration limit - The Company sets maximum exposure to an individual issuer and to a
particular sector.

b. Counterparty ratings - The Company reviews and recommends financial institutions that will
complement over-all investment objectives and service requirements,

Reporting of credit risk exposures, monitoring compliance with credit risk policy and review of credit
risk policy is done on a regular basis.

A credit exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer may be
unable to meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance agreements. The Company selects only
domestic and foreign companies with strong financial standing and excellent track records which are
allowed to participate in the Company’s reinsurance programs. The Company also set maximum
exposure for deposit products of accredited banks which will be the equivalent to the maximum
allocation for the said instruments.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk from its financial
assets (loans and receivables, AFS financial assets and financial assets at FVPL) is equal to their
carrying amount, In addition, there is no significant concentration of credit risk identified. The gross
maximum exposure to credit risk of the Company approximates its net maximum exposure. There were
no amounts that are set-off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Presentation. There were no amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement as of December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Credit quality of financial assets

It is the Company’s policy to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings across the financial assets.
The Company utilizes an internal credit rating system based on its assessment of the quality of the
financial assets.

The Company uses conventions which have been adapted to conform to the various ratings as
follows:

Standard and Poor’s Moody’s Reported as
AAA AAA AAA
AA+to AA- Aal to Aa3 AA
A+to A- Al to A3 A
BBB+ to BBB- Baal to Baa3 BBB

BB+ and below Bal and below Below investment grade
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The tables below show the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets as of December 31:

2017
Non-linked
A BRB BB Not Rated Tatal
Financial Assets; :
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P17,471471 B470355,781  B111,300,475 P1,532,138  P600,659,865
Short-term investments - 37,000,000 - - 37,000,000
Receivables - - - 84,335,995 84,335,995
Accrued income - - - 8,455,854 8,455,854

AFS financial assets
Government and corporate debt
securities - 1,294,943,086 - - 1,294,943,086
P17,471471 P1,802,298.867 P111,300,475 $£94,323,987 B2,025,394,800

Unit-linked

A BBB BB Noft Rated Total
Financial Assets:
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents P161,659,760 B P P-  P161,659,760
Receivables - - - 64,083,118 64,083,118
Accrued income 6,955,140 6,955,140
Financial assets as FVPL:
Debt securities -~ 435,812,867 - - 435,812,867
Equity securities - - - 1,363,692,611  1,363,692,611
Unit investment trust fund - - - 4,926,244,267  4,926,244,267
B161,659,760 P435,812,867 B P§,360,975,136 P6,958,447,763
0L6
Non-linked
A BBB BB Not Rated Total
Financial Assets:
Loans and receivables;
Cash and cash equivalents P863,310 P413938,991  BL35,137,930 R1,231,344  B551,171,625
Short-term investments - - - - -
Receivables - - - 41,022,760 41,022,760
Accrued income 9,957,583 9,957,583

AFS financial assets
Govemnment and corporate debt
securities —~  1,007,475,085 - 1,007,475,085
B863310 P1421414,076 PI35137930 B52211,687 21609627053

Unit-linked

A BBBE BB Not Rated Total

Financial Assets:
Loans and receivables:

Casi and cash equivalents P114,146,242 B- P- B- Pi14,146,242

Receivables - - - 18,923,097 18,923,097

Accrued income - - — 4,088,499 4,088,499
Financial assets as FVPL:

Government securities - 283,569,789 - - 283,569,789

Equity securities - - - 407,887,476 407,887,476
Unit investment trust fund - - 2796938515 2,796,938 515

B114,146,242  F283,569,789 P— P3,227,837,587 P3,625,553,618
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Liquidiry Risk

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the inability
to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or a counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual
obligation; or the insurance liabilities falling due for payment earlier than expected; or the inability to
generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The major liquidity risk confronting the Company is the daily calls on its available cash resources in
respect of claims arising from insurance contracts and operating expenses. The Company manages
tiquidity by forecasting cash flow requirements, Investments are made in assets with maturities or
interest payments which are matched against expected pay-outs of claims benefits (i.e., amount and
duration of assets are matched against amount and duration of liabilities). In addition, significant
outflows due to operating expenses (e.g., salaries, bonuses, IT expenditures, etc.) are scheduled based
on an agreed budget timeline,

It is unusual for a company primarily transacting insurance business to predict the requirements of
funding with absolute certainty as theory of probability is applicd on insurance contracts to ascertain
the likely provision and the time period when such liabilities will require settlement. The amounts and
maturities in respect of insurance liabilities are thus based on management’s best estimate based on
actuarial techniques and past experience.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities based
on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period. Most of the Company’s financial assets are
used to support its insurance contract liabilities which are not shown in the table below. Refer to Note
13 for additional information on the Company’s insurance contract liabilities as well as to the Insurance
Risks Section.

December 31, 2017
Non-linked
Maturity Breakdown
Up to a year 1-3 years 3-5 years Over 5 years No term Total
Financial assets:
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivatents P600,659,865 P P B B- R600,659,865
Short-term investinents 37,080,000 - - - - 37,000,000
Receivables 84,335,995 - - - - 84,335,995
Acerued income 8,455,854 - - - - 8,455,854
AFS financial assets
Government and corporate debt
securities 571,900,132 440,648,324 217,565,444 54,829,186 - 1,294,943,086
Total financial assets P1,302,351,846 R440,648,324 217,565,444 P54,829,186 P-  F2,025,394,800
Other financial liabilities;
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses (P535,849,917) (P14,726,159)  (R16,912,031) P- B-  (BS77,488,107)
Insurance payable {47,045,625) - - - - (47,045,625)
Payable to related parties (261,336,052) - — - (261,336,052)

Total financial liabilities {P844,231,594) (P14,726,159) (#26,912,031) B B~ (P885,869,784)
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Unit-linked

Maturity Breakdown

Up to a year 1-3 years 3-5 years Over 5 years No term Total

Financial assets:
Loans and receivables;

Cash and cash equivalents B161,659,760 B- P P- P 161,659,760

Receivables 64,083,118 - - - - 64,083,118

Accrued income 6,955,140 - - - - 6,955,140
Firancial assets at FVPL

Debt securities 4,072,207 64,399,335 76,673,508 290,667,817 435,811,867

Equity securities - -
Other tnvestment:

Feeder Fund (UITF) - - - = 4,926,244,267 4,926,244,267
Total financial assets P236,770,225 64,399,335 76,673,508 290,667,817 £,289,936,878 6,958,447,763
Financial liabilities:

Other financial liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued

- 1,363,692,611 1,363,692,611

CXpERSes (P66,449,210) P P P P {B66,449,210)
Total financial liabilities (P66,449,210) B B P- B (B66,449,210)
December 31, 2016
Non-linked
Matuzity Breakdown
Up to a year -3 years 3-3 years Over 5 years No term Total
Financial assets:
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents PR551,171,625 P B P 28 R551,171,625
Receivables 41,022,760 - - - - 41,022,760
Acerued income 9,957,583 - - - - 9,957,583
AFS financial assets
Government securities 83,235,265 204,492,253 719,747,567 - - 1,007,475,085
Total financial assets R685,387,233 B204,492,253 P719,747,567 B B~ P1,609,627,053
Other financial liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses (P464,548,110) (P8,897,529) (P5,745,926) B B~ (P479,191,565)
Insurance payabte {37,717,452) - - - (37,717,452)
Due to related parties {171,866,945) - - - {171,866,945)
Total financial liabilities (P674,132,507) (8,897,529) (P5,745,926) P P-  (P688,775,962)
Unit-linked
Maturity Breakdown
Up to a year 1-3 years 3-5 years Over 5 years No ferm Total
Financial assets:
Loans and receivabies:
Cash and cash equivalents 114,146,243 B - B o R114,146,243
Receivables 18,923,097 - - - - 18,923,097
Accrued income 4,088,499 - - - - 4,088,499
Financial assets at FVPL
8 Government securities - 13,621,355 25,109,364 244,839,070 283,569,789
Equity securities - - - - 407 887 476 407,887,476
Other Investment;
Feeder Fund (UITF) — - - 2,796,938,515 2,796,938,515

Totatl financial assets £137,157,839 13,621,355 P25,109,364 P244,839,070  B3,204,825991  P3,625,553,619
Financial liabilities:
Other financial labilities:

Accaunts payable and accrued

expenses (P5,006,05%) P P [ B (P5,006,058)
Total financial kabilitics (P5,006,058) . [ . P (R5,006,058)
Muavket Risk

o Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of the Company’s financial instruments will decrease
resulting from changes in the foreign currency exchange rates. The Company’s financial assets are
predominantly denominated in the same currencies as its insurance and other financial liabilities,
which serves to mitigate the foreign currency exchange risks on its intercompany payables.
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Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of equities will decrease resulting from changes in
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual stocks. The Company is exposed to equity
price risks arising from equity investments. Equity investments are held for the Company’s
variable unit linked funds. Exposure is being managed through equity asset class allocation target
and range defined in the Investment Policy of the funds and is being monitored on a monthly basis.

The effect on profit or loss (as a result of a change in fair value of instruments held in the unit-
linked assets) due to a reasonably possible change in indices, with all other variables held constant,
is as follows:

2017
Effect on profit or loss
Change in Equity Price (%) Increase (Decrease)
Equity securities
10% P81,016,434
-10% (81,016,434)
2016
Effect on profit or loss
Change in Equity Price (%) Increase (Decrease)
Equity securities
10% P40,788,748
-10% (40,788,748)

The Company determined the reasonably possible change in equity pricing percentage changes in
the fair value for the past three years.

Interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s investments classified as AFS financial assets
and financial assets at FVPL in particular are exposed to such risk. The Company’s investment
policy manages interest rate risk by aiming to match the maturities of interest-bearing financial
assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities. The amount, duration and yield to maturity of assets
are matched against the amount and duration of the liabilities.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its investment in government bonds and
corporate bonds for the VUL funds. Exposure is being managed through asset class allocation and
ranges defined in the Investment Policy of the funds.

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates
for the next financial year, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s total
comprehensive income follows:

2017
Effect on total
Change in Interest Rates (%) comprehensive income
10% P17,863,312

-10% (17,863,312)
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016
Effect on total
Change in Interest Rates (%) comprehensive income
10% P8,076,588
-10% (8,676,588)

The Company determined the reasonably possible change in interest rate using the percentage
changes in floating rates for the past (4) quarters for the year ended December 31, 2017.

27. Commitments

Operating 1ease Commitments

Company as lessee

The Company entered into commercial leases on certain offices for its head office and branches. These
leases have terms ranging between 1 to 5 years with renewal terms included in the contracts. Certain
lease contracts also include escalation clauses. Renewals are at the option of the Company. There are
no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2017 2016
Within one year 76,592,416 B39,376,7386
After one year but not more than five years 104,753,737 113,162,535

P181,346,153 P152,539,321

The Company has an existing five (5) year lease term agreement for its head office with W Fifth
Building, commencing on June 1, 2014 to May 31, 2019, renewable at the option of the Company for
another 3 years term subject to mutually agreeable terms by parties. In addition herewith, the Company
started to lease an office space on the 9" Floor of W Fifth Building covering the period March 1, 2017
to February 28, 2022. The rental charges shall be subject to 6% escalation each vear over the five-year
term of the lease.

The Company entered also into lease agreements pertaining to its offices in other locations, details

follow:
Office Location Contract Start Date Lessor Escalation Rate
Cagayan de Oro January 21, 2015 Limketkai Sons, Inc. 10% starting on the second year
Cebu QOctaober 21, 2015 Asian I-Office Properties Inc, 7% beginning June 2016
Baguio April 17,2016 Development Bank of the Philippines 5% starting on the second year
SGA BGC May 1, 2016 MDI Group Holdings Inc. 6% starting on the second year
Makati June 1, 2016 BDO Unibank Inc, 5% staring on the second year
Davao July 18, 2016 Bormaheco Incorporated 5% starting on the second vear
Santiago January 1, 2017 Mango Suites 5% starting on the second year
BGC January 1, 2017 21 Drive Land Corporation 6% starting on the second year
Malolos December 1, 2017 V. Ladia Rental Space None

Developmental Fees
The Company entered into Deeds of Undertaking (DOU) with the agency leaders to assist in building
and maintaining of the agencies for the purpose of exclusively selling the Company’s life insurance
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products. The remaining developmental fees shall be released monthly based on the first year
commissions (FYC) requirement as defined in the DOU, In the event that the FYC requirement is not

met in any given month, the pay-out of the monthly developmental fees will be suspended
(see Note 10),

Developmental fee commitments are as follows:

2017 2016
Within one year P199,944,761 166,620,634
After one year but not more than five years 330,000,001 275,000,001

B529,944,762 441,620,635

Distribution Agreement

On September 15, 2014, FWD Life and Security Bank Corporation (SBC) signed a Distribution
Agreement (DA) under which SBC will sell exclusively FWD Life products. The terms of the
Agreement provides for payment by FWD Life of an Upfront Fee and Exclusive Access Fee amounting
to a total of P600 million in consideration for FWD Life’s exclusive access to the distribution network.
The DA also provides for payment of Initial Milestone Fee (IMF), if the cumulative ANP reaches the
target of 23.886 billion and Subsequent Milestone Fee (SMF), if the cumulative ANP reaches the target
of £16.854 billion.

Amortization of the P300 million Intangible Asset shall be amortized on its economic life of fifteen (15)
years while the amortization of the Prepaid Asset for the remaining B300 million shall be expressed in
terms of Unit of Production (UOP), at the rate of 7.7% of actual ANP production.

The bancassurance agents are given annual performance bonus and over-achievement bonus under the
DA with SBC. Annual performance bonus is given in the event that the ANP generated from eligible
sales during the year achieves the annual performance target of the bancassurance agent for the financial
year. Annual over-achievement performance bonus is provided to bancassurance agents in the event
that the ANP generated from eligible sales during the year achieves the annual over-achievement
performance target.

Management Fee Income

The Company entered into a Discretionary Investment Management Agreement with BPI wherein the
Company availed of the services of BPI as investmenf manager relative to the management and
investment of the funds of the Company for its unit-linked products. Currently, the Company has 3
Funds that are managed by BPI.

The Company also entered into a Participating Trust Agreement with SBC wherein the Company agrees
to participate in the Unit Investment Trust Fund established by SBC for the purpose of providing
investment opportunities for higher investment yields through a diversified portfolio of investments for
the Company’s unit-linked products. Currently, the Company has participation in 4 Funds.

In 2017, the Company entered into a Discretionary Investment Management Agreement with SBC
wherein the company availed of the services of SBC as investment manager relative to the management
and investment of funds of the Company for its unit-linked products. The Company has 1 fund that is
managed by SBC under this arrangement,

In 2017, the Company has also set up a US dollar denominated equity index-linked fund. The fund
replicates an index based strategy and is administered by the company.
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Management fees ranging from 1.92%-2.20% of the Net Asset Value are collected from the fund
wherein FWD’s share ranges from 1.60%-1.88%. Management fees are collected on a monthly and
quarterly basis from the funds managed by BPI and SBC, respectively.

28,

Contingencies

The Company has not been involved in any lawsuit arising from the normal course of carrying out its
insurance business.

29,

Events After the Reporting Date

On January 24, 2018, the Board of Director approved through a Special Meeting, additional
contingency surplus infusion amounting to P250 million which was received by the Company on
December 22, 2017,

30.

Supplementary Tax Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010

The following supplementary information under RR 15-2010 is presented for purposes of filing with
the BIR and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Output VAT
Details of the Company’s output VAT declared are as follows:
Fee income:
Management fee income on assets held to cover unit-linked
Liabilities R75,320,555
Output VAT rate 12%
B9,038,467
Documentary stamp tax
The Company’s documentary stamp tax paid or accrued in 2017 follows:
Source Payment
Life insurance premiums/coverage P 1,412,800
Other documents 19,795
Total P1,432,595

Other taxes and licenses
This includes all local taxes including licenses and permit fees under the account “Taxes and
Licenses” and under “General and Administration” expenses.

Local Taxes
Business registration fees B3,467,292
Real property tax 86,896
Community tax certificate 10,500
National Taxes
Percentage taxes 34,001,258
Insurance commission license 1,131,500

(Forward)

ARG AT



-57-

Notarial fee 129,140
BIR annual registration 5,000
Other taxes 50,318
Total £38,881,904

Withholding taxes
Details of the Company’s withholding taxes paid or accrued during the year are as follows:

Tax on compensation and benefits P174,009,748
Expanded withholding tax 137,335,583
Final withholding tax 18,594,050
Value added tax 17,689,231
Fringe benefit tax 362,957

$347,991,569

Tax assessments
The Company has no pending tax case outside the administration of the BIR.
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We have examined the financial statements FWD Life Insurance Corporation (the Company) as of
December 31, 2017, on which we have rendered the attached report dated March 15, 2018.

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011), we are stating that the
above Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of FWD Group Financial Services Pte. Ltd and therefore,
has only one stockholder owning more than one hundred (100) shares,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Bernalette L.. Ramos
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CPA Certificate No, 0091096

SEC Accreditation No. 0926-AR-2 (Group A),
June 16, 20106, valid until June 16, 2019
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We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
FWD Life Insurance Corporation {the Company) for the periods ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 and have issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2018, Our audits were made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of all the effective standards and interpretations under Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards as of December 31, 2017 is the responsibility of the Company’s management.
This schedule is presented for the purpose of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68,
As Amended (2011) and is not part of the basic financial statements. This schedule has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, fairly states, in all material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in

relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Bernalette L. Ramos

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0091096

SEC Accreditation No. 0926-AR-2 (Group A),
June 16, 2016, valid until June 16, 2019

Tax Identification No. 178-486-666

BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-81-2015,
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FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS UNDER PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

AL

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics
PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting v
(Revised) Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment v
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First- v
time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from v
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and v
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v
Amendments to PFRS 1: Borrowing costs v
Amendments to PFRS 1: Meaning of ‘Effective PFRSs’ v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2; Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based v
Payment Transactions
Amendments to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting Condition v
PFRS 3 Business Combinations v
(Revised) Amendments to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration in 2 Business Combination
Amendments to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint v
Arrangements
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee
Contracts
Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, with PFRS 4 Not Early Adopted
PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued v
Operations
Amendments to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal v
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Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7. Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendmentis to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 7: Applicability of the Amendments
to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Statements

Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 (2013 version)

Not Early Adopted

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the Reportable
Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 9: Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 9: Classification and Measurement
(2010 version)

Amendments to PFRS 9: Hedge Accounting

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 9; Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRSIZ: Investment Entities

AT AR



PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to PFRS 13: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 13: Shori-term receivable and
payables

Amendments to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception

v

PFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Not early adopted

PFRS 16

Leases

Not early adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendments to PAS 1: Clarification of the requirements for
comparative information

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiatives

PAS 2

Inventories

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure
Initiative

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

PAS 10

Events after the Reporting Period

PAS 11

Construction Contracts

PAS 12

Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes, Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

Not Early Adopted

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendment to PAS 16; Classification of servicing
equipment

Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method - Proportionate
Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and
PAS 38, Intangible Assets, Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

Amendments to PAS 16: Bearer Plants

PAS 17

Leases

JE RO



PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised) v
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group
Plans and Disclosures
Amendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee v
Contributions
Amendments to PAS 19: Regional market issue regarding v
discount rate
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of v
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rafes v
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 24; Key Management Personnel v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27 Separate Financial Staternents v
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 27; Investment Entities v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates v
(Amended) : . .
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28, Invesiment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint
Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual Improvements to Not Early Adopted
PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation v
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1; Puttable Financial v
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues v
Amendments to PAS 32; Tax effect of distribution to holders v
of equity instruments
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and v
Financial Liabilities
PAS 33 Earningsrpcr Share v
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Interim Financial Reporting

Amendments to PAS 34: Interim financial reporting and
segment information for total assets and liabilities

Amendments to PAS 34: Disclosure of information
‘elsewhere in the interim financial report’

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Amendments to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Amortization

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and
PAS 38, Intangible Assets, Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39 Transition and Initial Recognition
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4. Financial Guarantee
Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items

Amendment to PAS39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

v

Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 {2013 version)

Not Early Adopted

PAS 40

Investment Property

Amendment to PAS 40: Interrelationship between PFRS 3
and PAS 40

PAS 41

Agriculture

Amendments to PAS 41: Bearer Plants

Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of
Investment Property

Not Early Adopted
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Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and v
Similar Liabilities

IFRIC 2 iMembers’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar v
Instruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease v

IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific v
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approack under PAS 29 Financial v
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 v

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9 and v
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporiing and Impaivment v

IFRIC 11 PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions v

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangemments v

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v

IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding v
Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments v

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine v

IFRIC 21 Levies v

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration Not Early Adopted

SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro v

SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating v
Activities

SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities v
Amendment to SIC-12: Scope of SIC-12 v

SI1C-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by v
Venturers

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
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SI1C-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or ifs
Shareholders

S1C-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease

SI1C-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs
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BIR Form 1702-RT Page 1 of 10

Reference No : 121800024733475
Date Filed : April 13, 2018 07:58 PM
Batch Number : 0

Far BIR BCS/

Use Only  Hem 1702-RTOSM3P1
Annual Income Tax Return 81R Form No.
Republika ng Filipinas For Corporation, Partnership and Other Non-individual -
K Kaga.:]\laran “Fg F?"a'[‘at'ap' Taxpayer Subject Only fo REGULAR Income Tax Rate 1?0%U§T
awanihan ng Rentas nternas | goyor ai required information in CAPITAL LETTERS. Mark applicable boxes with an X" ”P“e )
Two Coples MUST be fited with the BIR and one held by the taxpayer. age

5 Alphanumeric Tax Code [ATC)
{licoss | {Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) | 1

1Fer Galendar & Fiscas 3 Amended Return? | 4 Shorl Period Relurn?

2 Year Ended (MAW20YY) Oves@no O ves@ no ,
R [icoio | |CORPORATION IN GENERAL - JAN 1, 2004 Q]
Part | - Backgreund Information
8 Taxpayer Idenfification Nuraber (TiN) | oo J-lseo |-[paz ]-jooo | | 7roo Cude||125
8 Date of Incorporation/Organization (MM/DDIYYYY} I |1 1/19/2013 ]

9 Registered Name (Enler only 1 lefter per box uslig CAPITAL LETTERS)
FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION

10 Registered Address (Indicate complele mglsreféd address)
16TH FLOOR, GROUND FLOOR & MEZZANINE W FIFTH AVENUE BLDG. 5TH AVENUE COR. 32ND STREET TAGUIG CITY

11 Conlact Number 12 Email Address
[s587316 |{|ehona-sevilla.ventura@fwd.com ]
13 Main Line of BUsiness | 14 PSIC Code
[LIFE INSURANCE | fs701

15 Method of Deduclions temized Deductions [Secticn 34 O Oplional Standard Deduetion (C8D) - 40% of Gross Income [Section 34(L),
{A-d}, NIRC] MNIRC as amended by RA No. 9504]

i Part il - Total Tax Payable (Do NOT enler Cenfavos) |

16 Tola! Income Tax Due (Overpayment} (From Part IV lterm 44)

17 Less: Tolal Tax Credits/Payments (From Part IV ltem 45}

18 Net Tax Payable (Qverpayment) (ifem 16 Less ltem 17) {From Part IV lfem 46} ] ) 13);
18 Add: Total Penalfles (From Part IV Hem 50} i 7 _—“__ T I
20 TOTAL ANMOUNT PAYABLE (Overpayment) (Sum of ffem 18 and 19) (From Part W item 59) || o (2,847,699
21 If Overpayment, mark "X" one box only (Qnice the choice is made, the same is lrrevacable)
) To be refunded ) Tobe issued a Tax Credit Certilicate {TCC) To be carried over as tax credi next year/quarier

We declare under the penalties of perjury, Inat Ihis anpual return hes baen madz In goed faith, verified by us, and fo the best of olir kaowledge and befef, s irue and correct pursuant lo the provisiens of ihe
amende authori iorlze i fotter and indi

s
residentiPrinclpzl Officer/Authorized Representative - Signalure over printed name of TreasurertAsslstant Treasurer i
Tile of Signatery || II Number of pages filed || [

I | 23 Datte of §
22@ Communlty Tax Gertiicate (CTC) Number (D SEC RegNo, [[00132738 | ‘GeniDprey Y lotrisr2018 |
24 Place of lssue  |[TAGUIG CITY | B | 70,500
[
Part il - Details of Paymeant
Details of Payment Drawee BanldAgency Number Date (MMDD/YYYY) Amount
26 Cash/Bank Debit Memo 0;
27 Check : =
28 Tax Debit Meino 7 B —
59 Others (Specily Befow) BUREA
| i | 1 | AN

|
Lol

[ Machine Validation/Revenue Offictal Receipts Details (if not filed with an Authorized Agenf Bani

Date f’APRlﬁzma SCES
BV BB

U 7. W AN

hitps://efps.bir.gov.ph/efps-war/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013Vdrsionf 7 BRTD




BIR Form 1702-RT : » Page 2 of 10

Stamp of recelving Office/AAB and Date of
Recaipt (RO's Signalure/Bank Teller's Inilial)
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BIR Form 1702-RT . Page 3 of 10

BIR Form No. .
Annual Income Tax Return | 4792.RT : m
Page 2 June 2013 ' 1702-RT06/13P2
Taxpayer kdentification Number (TIN) | Registered Name
[008 Heso Hs43 tano | [FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION |
Part IV - Computation of Tax (Do NGT enfer Cenlavos)
30 Net SalesiRevenues/Receipts/Fees (From Schedule 1 llem 6) 4,549,5658

31 Less: Cost of Sales/Services (Frem Schedule 2 jlem 27)
32 Gross Income from Operation (ftem 30 Less Jlem 31)
33 Add: Other Taxable Income Not Subjected to Finai Tax (From Schedtle 3 ftem 4}
34 Total Gross Income (Sum of lems 32 & 33)

|.ess; Deductions Allowable under Existing Law
38 Ordinary Allowable ltemized Deductions (From Scheduie
4 item 40} i 1,034,770,928|
36 Spedial Allowable ltemized Deductiens (From Schedule i 0
5 ftem 5)
37 NOLCO (only for those taxable under Sec. 27{A to C};
Sec. 28(A)1) & {A)(6)(b} of the tax Code) (From Schedule | 0]
6A ltem 8D)
38 Total lemized Deductions (Sum of items 35 fo 37) I 1,031 ,7?0,92§]
OR [in case laxable under Sec 27(A) & 28(A)(1)]
39 Optional Siandard Deduction (40% of flem 34) || ol
| 40 Net Taxable Income (iem 34 Less lfem 38 OR 38) Il (1,695,298,928)}
| 41 Income Tax Rate | 30.0% |

42 Income Tax Due other than MCIT (ltem 40 x ffem 41)

43 Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) (2% of Gross Income in llem 24)
44 Tolal Income Tax Due {Normal Income Tax In ftem 42 ar MCIT in ifem 43, whichever Is higher) [ Oli
(To part if ltem 16} I
45 Less: Total Tax CreditsfPayments (From Schadule 7 tem 12} (To Part li ltem 17) | 2,547,693)]
| 46 Net Tax Payable {Overpayment) (item 44 Less item 45) (To Part If lfem 18) Il (2.547.693)I|

Add Penalties

47 Surcharge
48 Interest
49 Compromise )
50 Total Penalties (Sum of ltems 47 to 45) (To part /! liem 19) (il ol
[ 51 Total Amount Payable (Overpayment) (Sum ilom 46 & 50} (To Part If llem 20) il (2,547.593)|1
Part V - Tax Rellef Availment (Do NOT enter Centavos)

52 Speciaj Allowable itemized Deductions {30% of item 36}
§3 Add: Special Tax Credits (From Schedule 7 ffem 9)
54 Total Tax Relief Availment (Sum of ltems 52 & 53)

Part VI - Information - External Auditor/Accredlted Tax Agent
55 Name of External Auditor/Accredited Tax Agent
[SYCIP GORRES VELAYQ AND COMPANY _-I

T bz | a7 o0 |

BERMALETTE RAMOS

57 Name of Signing Partner (if External Auditor is a Partnarship)

/ 7 o T e == e
59 BIR Accraditation No. 60 Issue Date (MM/DD/YYYY) 61 Expiry Date (MWDD/YYYY}
los  Hoo1sgs hoat Hzo18 {03/14/2018 ] [osr14/2024 i

hitps://efps.bir.gov.ph/efps-war/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013 Version/1702RT/1702RT... 4/13/2018



BIR Form 1702-RT Page 4 of 10

BIR Form No. .
Annual Income Tax Return | q7p2.RT “”
Page 3 - Schedules 1 & 2 June 2013 _ ‘ 702 RTON3P3
Taxpayer ldentification Number {TIN} | Registered Name

loos  Heso Hsa3 Hooo | |FwD LIFE INSURANGE CORPORATION o |
Schedule 1 ai'es]evecptleees (Attach additional sheet/s, if necessary) |

" 1 Sale of Goods/Properties ' ]

2 Sale of Services T 4549,865,458

3 Lease of Propeities

I

4 Total (Sum of ftems 1 fo 3)

5 Less: Sales Retums, Allowances and Discounis

6 Net Sales!RevenueszecelptsIFees {ltem 4 Less Mem 5) {To Part IV ltem 30)

| Schadule 2 - Cost of Sales (Affach addiiicnal sheet/s, if necessary} |

| ___Schedule 2A - Cost of Sales (For thosM&L i
1 Merchandise Invenfory - Beginning T

2 Add: Purchases of Merchandise

3 Total Goods Available for Sale (Sum of llems 1 & 2}

4 Less: Merchandise Inventory, Ending
& Cost of Sales (flem 3 Less ltem 4} {To Schedule 2 ltem 27 }

Schedule 2B - Cost of Sales (For those gage in Manufacturing)

6 Direct Materials, Begining )

T Add: Purchases of Direct Materials

8 Materials Avallable for Use (Sum of lfems 6 & 7)

9 Less: Direct Materials, Ending
10 Raw Malerials Used (lfem 8 Less item 9}
11 Direct Labor

42 Manufacturing Overhead
13 Total Manufaciuring Gost (Sum of lfems 10, 11 & 12)

14 Adg: Work in Process, Beginning

15 Less: Work in Process, Ending

16 Gost of Goeds panufactured {Sum of lfems 13 & 14 Less llem 15}

17 Finished Goods, Beginning

18 Less: Finished Goods, Ending

19 Cost of Goods Manufactured and Sold (Sum of llems 16 & 17 Less flem 18) (To Sched. 2 lfem 27)

Schedule 2C - Cost of Services
{For those Engaged in Services, indicate only those directly incurred or related to the gross revenue from rendition of services)
20 Direct Charges - Salaries, Wages and Benefils

21 Direct Charges - Materlals, Supglies and Facililies

22 Cirect Charges - Depreciation

23 Direct Charges - Rental
24 Direct Charges - Outside Services
25 Direct Charges - Others

] — — 3,641,770,320)

26 Total Cost of Services (Sum of ltems 20 fo 25) (To lfem 27)

E 27 Total Cost of Sales/Services (Sum of ltems 5, 19 & 26, if applicable) (To Part IV ltem 31) ﬂ 5,303,310,076]|

https://efps.bir.gov.ph/efps-war/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013Version/1702RT/1702RT.,.  4/13/2018



BIR Form 1702-RT Page 5 0f 10

BIR Form No, . .
Annual Income Tax Return | 47g2.RT m m
Page 4 - Schedules 3 & 4 June 2043 " " 1702«RT06.’1 3P4
Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN} Registered Name
floos Heeo  Hsas  — Hooo | [FWD LIFE INSURANGE CORPORATION |

Schedule 3- Other Taxable Income Not Subjected to Fmal Tax (Attach addrf.vona.' sheet/s if necessary)

1MANAGEMENT
2 OTHERS

4 Total Other Taxable Income Not Subjected fo Final Tax (Sum of flems 1 (o 3) (To Part IV item 33) || ‘ 89,915,517]

Schedule 4 - Ordinary Allowahle ]temized Deductions (Attach additional sheel/s, if necessary) __]

=
1 Adveriising and Promotions I 124,030,97“51

Amorlizations (Specify on ltems 2, 3 & 4)

5 Bad Debs
6 Charilable Contributions

7 Commissions

8 Communication, 1.ight and Water

9 Depletion

10 Depreciation

11 Direclor's Fees

12 Fringe Benefits

13 Fuel ard Oil

14 Insurance

16 Interest

16 Janitorial and Messengerial Services

17 Losses

18 Management and Consullancy Fea

19 Miscellaneous

20 Office Supplies
21 Cther Services

22 Professional Fees
23 Rental
24 Repairs and Maintenance - (Labor or Labor & Materials)

25 Repairs and Maintenance - (Malerfals/Supplies)

26 Representation and Entertainment

27 Research and Devalopment
28 Royaliies

29 Salaries and Allowances

hitps://efps bir.gov.ph/efps-war/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013 Version/1702RT/1702RT... 4/13/2018



BIR Form 1702-RT Page 6 of 10

BIR Form No.
Annual Income Tax Return | 4702.8T m
Page 5 - Schedules 4,5 & 6 June 2013 1700 R TOGH 3P
Taxpayer ldentification Number {TiN} Regisfered Name
J|oos heso Hs43 Hooo | jFWD LIFE INSURANGE CORPORATION |

__Schedule 4- OrdmaryAIIowabEe Itemlzed Deductlons (Contmued from Prewous Page)

30 ScrtSewices
31 888, GSIS, Philheaith, HDMF and Other Confributions
32 Taxes and Licenses

33 Tolling Fees

34 Training and Seminars

35 Transportation and Travel
) Dthers [Specify below; Add addifional sheel(s), If hecessary] ) ]
PASS ROUGH - IT COST

37 EANK CHARGES
ae iFOREx LosS

—— T —
l 40 Total Ordinary Altowable ltemized Deductions (Sum of items 1 to 38) (To Part IV ftem 35) ﬂ 1,031,770.928”
| Schedule 5 - Special Allowable ltemized Deductions {Attach addmonal sheet/s if necessary) |

Description ' LegaiBasis Amouat I

5 Total Speclal Altowable Hemized Deductiens (Sum of flems 1 to 4) (To Part IV ffem 36)

| Schedule 6 - Computation of Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCOQ} 1
1 Gross Income {From Part IV em 34) mew_)_______________ 28,001)

2 Less: Total Deductions Exclusive of NOLCO & Daduction Under Special Law
3 Net Operating Loss {To Schedule 64)

| Schedule 6A - Computation of Available Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) |
I Net Qperating Loss |

: ! B) NOLGO Applied Previous Year }
I Year incurred | A} Amount I

Contlnuatlon of Schedule GA(!tem numbersconlmue from the !ab!e above) —

| C) NOLGO Expired | D) NOLCO Applied Current Year l E) Net Operating Loss (Unapplled) [

i ' ] "~ 310,963,801] |1

8 Total NOLCO | Uli
(Sum of ltems 40 fo 70) (To Part IV llem 37) i

hitps://efps.bir.gov.ph/efps-war/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013Version/1702RT/1702RT...  4/13/2018



BIR Form 1702-RT

Page 7 of 10

BIR Form MNo.
Annual Income Tax Return| 47g2.RT H”
Page 6 - Schedules 7, 8 & 9 June 2013 1700-RT0GH13P6
Taxpayer ldentification Number (TiN) ! Registered Name
cos Heso Ha43 “Hooo | |[Fwo LiFE iINSURANCE CORPORATION |
| Schedule 7 - Tax Credits/Payments (attach proof) (aack additional sheets, if necossary) |
1 Prior Year's Excess Credits Other Than MCIT 518,584
2 lncome Tax Payment under MCIT from Previcus Quarter/s 0
3 Income Tax Payment under Regular/Normal Rate from Previous Quarter/s 0
4 Excess MCIT Applied this Current Taxable Year (From Schedule 8 Ifem 4F) 0
5 Creditable Tax Withheld from Previcus Quarter/s per BIR Form No. 2307 1,440,070
6 Creditabie Tax Withheld per BIR Form No. 2307 for the 4th Quarter 889,039
7 Foreign Tax Credits, if applicable B off
8 Tax Paid in Return Previously Filed, if this is an Amended Retum ol
9 Special Tax Credits (7o Part V ltem 53) G
Other Credits/Payments ¢speci)
10 0
11 9
12 Total Tax Credits/Payments (sum of tems 1o 11) {To Part iV lierm 45) 2,547,693

Schedule 8 - Computation of Minimum Corperate Income Tax (MCIT)

Year A} Normal Income Tax as Adjusted | B} MCIT CY Excess MCIT over Normal Income Tax
1 off 0 [l
2 af 0 aff
3 of of cf]

Continuation of Schedule 8 (Line numbers continue from fable ahove)

D) Excess MCIT Applied/Used [E) Expired Portion of Excess) F} Excess MCIT Applied |G) Balance of Excess MCIT Allowsble as
for Previous Years MCIT this Current Taxable Year| Tax Credit for Succeeding Year/s

1 - 0 0 O
21 ] 0 0 0 )
3 - of 0] 0
4  Total Excess MCITisum of Column for Hems 1F to 3F) (To Schedule 7 ltem 4} 0

Schedule 9 - Reconciliation of Net Income per Books Against Taxable Income (alizch sddifional sheells, if nacessary) i
1 Net Income/(Loss) per books (948,106,883)]|

Add: Non-deductible Expenses/Taxable Other Income

2 |IPAS 17 ADJUSTMENT

_ 4,943,615

3 |loTHERS 137,197,305
4 Total tsumef items 1103 (605,965,983)

| egs: A) Non-taxable Income and Income Subjected to Final Tax
5 [HNVESTMENT INCOME SUBJECTED TO FINAL TAX 44,467,845
6 |INON-TAXABLE INCOME 844,865,121
B) Special Deductions

7 0
8 of
9 Total (sun of fems 610 8) §89,332,966]|
10 Net Taxable Income (Loss} ftem 4 Less itom 5} (1,695,298,929)|

https://efps.bir. gov.phiefps-war/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013 Version/1702RT/1702RT...  4/13/2018



BIR Form 1702-RT Page 8 of 10

BiR Form No,
Annual Income Tax Return | 4702.RT ””
Page 7 - Schedules 10 & 11 June 2043 1702 RTOGM3P7
Taxpayer ldentification Number {TIN}) | Registered Name
008 Heso  He4s Haoo | PWE LIFE INSURANGE GORPORATION i
[ Schedule 10 - BALANCE SHEET |
Assets
1 Current Assels 9,265,322,297|
2 Long-Term Investment - - d
3 Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 168,945,608
4 Long-Term Receivables 0
5 intangible Assels 286,843,631
6 Cther Assels i 47,564,761
7 Total Assets (Sumof ttems 110 6) 9,778,676,207
Liabilities and Equity i
8 Current Liabilities ] 7,610,342,520]|
9 Long-Term Liabilities B o 0,
10 Deferred Cradils 0
11 Other Liabilities 0
12 Total Liabilities sumoftiems 8te #1) 7,610,342,520
43 Capital Stock 2,300,000,000(|
14 Additional Paid-in Capital 3,002,599,568]|
15 Retained Earnings ) (3,224,265@!]
16 Total Equity (sum ofitems 1310 15) 2,168,333,777
17 Total Liabilities and Equity (Sumofltems 12 & 16; 9,778,676,297
Schedule 11~ Stockholders (2 Partners [Z Members Information (Top 20 Stockholders, pariners or Members)
(On column 3 enter the amount of capital conlribution and on the last column enter the percentage {his represents on the entire ownership)
REGISTERED NAME TIN Capital Contribution ':'/z)ttgl

FWD GROUP FINANCIAL _ o

= —

aaz_|fis7 |-[p7s J-oo |~ N 00
BT o — RN . .
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1702-RT0613P8

Taxpayer ldentification Number (TIN)

| Registered Name

Final Withholding

008 _Hsso0 Hs43 Hoao | [[FWD LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION - |

| Schedule 12 - Supplemental Information (Aftach additional sheel/s, if necessary) |
I} Gross Income/ .

Recelpts Subjected to A) Exempt B) Actual AmountiFair Market | oy 5y o) Tay withheld/Paid

Value/Net Capital Gains

1 Interests 0 44,467,845 8,895,901
2 Royalties [i 0 0
3 Dividends [i 0 0
4 Prizes and Winnings [& ) 0

il) SalefExchange of Real properties

A) Sale/Exchange #1

B) Sale/Exchange #2

5 Description of Property {e.g. land, improvement, efc.)

6 QCTITCT/CCT/Tax Declaration No.

7 Certificate Authorizing Registration (CAR} No

8 Actual Amount/Fair Market Value/Net Capital Gains

9 Final Tax Withheld/Paid

I} Sale/Exchange of Shares of Stock

A) Sale/fExchange #1

B) Sale/Exchange #2

10 Kind{PS/CS)/Stock Genrlificate Series No.

11 Ceriificate Authorizing Registration (CAR) No.

12 Number of Shares

13 Date of Issue (MM/DD/YYYY)

14 Actual Amount/Fair Market Vaiue/Net Capital Gains

15 Final Tax Withheld/Paid

1V} Other Income (Specify)

A) Cther Income #1

B) Other Income #2

16 Other Income Subject to Final Tax Under Sections 57
(A)127/others of the Tax Code, as amended
{Specify)

17 Actual Amount/Fair Market Vaiue/Net Capital Gains

18 Final Tax Withheld/Paid

[ 19 Total Final Tax Withheld Paid (Sum of ltems 1C lo 4C, 9A, 9B, 154, 15B, 18A & 188) | 8,695,901]|
| Schedule 13 - Gross Income/Receipts Exempt from Income Tax |
| 1 Returny of Premium (Actual Amount/Fair Markef Valus) | | q| l

1} PersonaliReal Properties Received
thru Gifts, Beguests, and Devices

A) Personai/Real Properties #1

B) Personal/Real Properties #2

2 Description of Property {e.g. fand, improvement, efc.)

3 Modes of Transfer (e.g Donation}

4 Cerlificate Authorizing Registration (CAR) Ne.

5 Actual Amount/Fair Market Value

Il} Other Exempt Income/Receipts

A) Other Exempt Income #1

B) Other Exempt Income #2

6 Other Exempt Income/Receipts Under
Sec. 32 (B) of the Tax Code, as amended (Specify)

I I

7 Actual Amount/Fair Market Value/Net Capital Gains

l _l
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| 8 Total Income Receipts Exempt From Income Tax (Sum of ftems 1, 54, 5B, 7A & 75) | [ e 9 ]

https:/efps.bir.gov.ph/efps-war/faces/EFPSWeb_war/forms2013 Version/1702RT/1702RT... 4/13/2018



